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Our Vision

To be the leading financial services provider, partnering with our customers for
a more prosperous and secure future

Our Mission

We are a team of committed professionals, providing innovative and efficient
financial solutions to create and nurture long-term relationships with our
customers. In doing so, we ensure that our shareholders can invest
with confidence in us

Our Values

The standards and principles which determine our behavior and how we
interact with our customers and each other

Credit Rating
Long-Term AAA (Triple A)
Short —Term A1+ (A one plus)
By PACRA
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Directors’ Report - June 2020

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to place before you, the unconsolidated condensed interim financial
statements of MCB Bank Limited (MCB) for the six months period ended June 30, 2020.

Introduction

During H1 2020, MCB accelerated its business momentum while overcoming the challenges posed by the COVID-19
pandemic which had an adverse impact on the economic growth the world over, including Pakistan. Following the breakout of
the Covid-19 pandemic, MCB has taken all necessary steps to ensure continued and uninterrupted services to our customers
in a safe environment. The State Bank of Pakistan has taken a host of measures to dilute the impact of the pandemic, including
cutsininterest rates, refinance schemes for continued payment of wages and salaries, ease in debt burden ratio, rescheduling/
restructuring of financing facilities, etc.

The risks and related measures adopted by the Bank to mitigate the impact associated with the outbreak of COVID-19 are
detailed in note 6 of the unconsolidated financial statements.

Performance Review Rs. in Million

Profit Before Taxation 22,254
Taxation 9,045
Profit After Taxation 13,209
Un-appropriated Profit Brought Forward 55,778
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligations - net of tax (1,739
Transfer in respect of incremental depreciation from surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets to unappropriated profit - net of tax 45
54,084
Profit Available for Appropriation 67,293
Appropriations:
Statutory Reserve 1,321
Final Cash Dividend at Rs. 5.0 per share - December 2019 5,925
Interim Cash dividend at Rs. 5.0 per share - March 2020 5,925
Total Appropriations 13,171
Un-appropriated Profit Carried Forward 54,122

With strong build up in core earnings, MCB reported a profit after tax (PAT) of Rs. 13.2 billion which is up by a significant 24%, when mapped
against corresponding period last year. This performance translated to Earnings Per Share (EPS) of Rs 11.15 for H1'20 (H1'19: Rs 9.01).

The Bank's netinterestincome for the period increased by 30% to Rs 36.01 billion. This was achieved through generation of current accounts
and timely investment in the interest earning assets. The strategic shift in the maturity profiling of the investment base from short term to long
term supplemented the netinterest margin growth.

On the operating expenses side (excluding pension fund reversal), despite the surge in inflationary pressures and increased operational and
infrastructural outreach, the Bank was able to contain the growth in administrative expenses and reported a net decrease of Rs. 138 million
versus last year, with the cost to income ratio improving from 46.1 percent in H1'19 to 38.0 percent in H1'20. This was achieved through a
strategic cost efficiency drive initiated in 2019 ensuring delivery through well-defined tactical plans.

The stock market has responded to the COVID-19 pandemic with worrying volatility; resultantly, Bank has recorded a charge of Rs. 1.3 billion
against equity investment portfolio. With respect to advances, the full potential effect of the economic stress posed by the COVID-19
outbreak remains difficult to predict, therefore management has exercised prudence and booked General Provision of Rs 4.0 billion during
the half year ended June 30, 2020, providing insulation and loss absorption capacity in case of any unforeseen deterioration in asset quality.

On the financial position side, the total asset base of the Bank on unconsolidated basis was reported at Rs. 1.67 trillion depicting an increase
of 10% over December 2019. Analysis of the asset mix highlights that net investments increased by Rs. 180 billion (24%) whereas gross
advances decreased by Rs 32 billion (-6%) over December 2019.
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The Non-performing loan (NPLs) base of the Bank recorded an increase of Rs. 939 million and was reported at Rs. 50.4 billion. The increase
was primarily on account of currency devaluation impact of foreign currency denominated NPLs with no significant accretion in the number of
cases. The Bank has not taken FSV benefit in calculation of specific provision and has increased its un-encumbered general provision
reserve to Rs. 4.5 billion. The coverage and infection ratios of the Bank were reported at 94.02% and 9.91% respectively.

On the liabilities side, the deposit base of the Bank registered an unprecedented increase of Rs. 129.92 billion (+11%) over December 2019,
with over 50% growth from current accounts, improving the currentaccount mix to 39.0% and CASAratio to 94.2%.

Return on Assets and Return on Equity improved to 1.66% and 18.16% respectively, whereas book value per share was reported at Rs.
122.93.

While complying with the regulatory capital requirements, the Bank's total Capital Adequacy Ratio is 20.51% against the requirement of
11.50% (including capital conservation buffer of 1.50% as reduced under the BPRD Circular Letter No. 12 of 2020). Quality of the capital is
evident from Bank's Common Equity Tier-1 (CET1) to total risk weighted assets ratio which comes to 15.23% against the requirement of
6.00%. Bank's capitalization also resulted in a leverage ratio of 6.72% which is well above the regulatory limit of 3.0%. The Bank reported
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) of 227.51% and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) of 174.47% against requirement of 100.

No dividend has been announced for the second quarter ended June 30, 2020 in compliance with State Bank of Pakistan letter no.
BPRD/BA&CPD/006315-2/20 dated 22 April, 2020. The first Interim Cash Dividend has already been paid at Rs.5.0 per sharei.e. 50% for the
quarterended March 31, 2020.

Ratings

The Bank enjoys highest local credit ratings of AAA/ A1+ categories for long term and short term respectively, based on PACRA notification
dated June 26, 2020.

Economy Review

Pakistan started the year 2020 on a positive note as the tough economic measures taken by the government since the commencement of its
tenure in 2018 started bearing fruit. However, the country was hit by the Covid-19 pandemic in March which led to the deterioration of the
macroeconomic variables in the second quarter.

Pressure on the external account started building in March when the foreign exchange reserves of the country declined from approximately
$18bn at the start of the year to $16.7bn mainly due to the external debt repayments. Moreover, foreign investors divested a major portion of
their investments in government debt instruments under SCRA due to the uncertain economic conditions prevailing at the international and
domestic front amid the Coronavirus pandemic. However, Pakistan was able to secure a loan worth $1.4bn from IMF right in time under the
IMF's Rapid Financing Instrument facility to support its reserves. Moreover, inflows received from multilateral sources, including WB, ADB
and AlIB, during June also helped to reduce some of the pressure on the external account. Another development that lent support to the
economy under these unprecedented times was the debt relief initiative taken by the G-20 countries. According to the WB estimates,
Pakistan is expected to get a debt relief worth $2.7bn valid till December, 2020 under the World Bank's Debt Service Suspension Initiative.

Moving on to the current account, Pakistan's exports took a larger hit as compared to the imports and declined by 18.4% during Jan-Jun
FY20 as compared to the same period last year. Imports, on the other hand, declined by 16.8% despite a significant drop in international oil
prices. However, current account deficit still showed a contraction of 79% due to growth in remittances.

In spite of the dollar inflows received by the State Bank and the contracting current account deficit, the USDPKR parity remained largely
volatile. The Rupee started the year against the dollar at PKR 154.8476. However, it depreciated by 8.5% during the six month period before
closing at PKR 168.0506.

Meanwhile, Inflation dropped to 8.59% in June after touching a high of 14.6% in January, 2020. The drop in inflation was observed due to the
high base impact and the decline in demand as major parts of the economy went under lockdown.

As regards to Pakistani stock markets, the KSE-100 tumbled down to 27,229 in March after starting the year near 42,000 as the government
took stringent measures to control the spread of the coronavirus in the economy. However, the index picked up again in the second quarter of
the year as businesses reopened and closed the half year at 34,422.
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On the fiscal side, the situation deteriorated during the last quarter of FY20 as revenue collection declined. Moreover, the government
announced a relief package worth PKR 1.2 trillion, which led to an increase in the government expenditure, to combat the impact of Covid-19
on the economy. Consequently, the fiscal deficit which was initially projected to be 7.1% of GDP clocked-in at 9.1% according to the
provisional figures released by the Ministry of Finance.

Future Outlook

Pakistan's economy was hit by the Covid-19 crisis at a time when it started moving towards stabilization and had to bear the brunt of the
pandemic like various other economies across the globe. Moving forward, as the economy opens up, the demand is expected to pick up.
However, growth will remain subdued due to the lasting impact of the virus on different sectors of the economy. On the external front, the
challenge for the government remains to increase its exports as the international market recovers from the effects of the lockdown. Moreover,
the expected decline in remittances due to the recent lay-offs in GCC countries will put pressure on the external front. Towards the fiscal side,
the highly optimistic tax revenue target set in the budget will pose another challenge for the government. However, it's imperative that the
government takes measures to meet its tax revenue target to restart the IMF program which is currently at halt.

In short, pressures arising from both the internal and external side will have to be closely watched to avoid any critical situation moving
forward.

Appreciation and Acknowledgements
The Board of Directors of MCB Bank Limited would like to thank the Government of Pakistan, the State Bank of Pakistan, the Securities &

Exchange Commission of Pakistan and other regulatory bodies for their continued support, all shareholders and customers of the Bank for
their trust, and our employees for their continuous dedication and commitment.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Imran Magbool Muhammad Ali Zeb
President & CEO, Director
MCB Bank Limited MCB Bank Limited

August 20, 2020
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MCB Bank Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of MCB Bank Limited (“the Bank”)

Report on review of Interim Financial Statements

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying unconsolidated condensed interim statement of financial position
ofthe Bank as at 30 June 2020 and the related unconsolidated condensed interim statement of profit and
loss account, unconsolidated condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated
condensed interim statement of changes in equity, unconsolidated condensed interim statement of cash
flows, and notes to the financial statements for the six-month period then ended (here-in-after referred
to as the “interim financial statements”). Management is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these interim financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a
conclusion on these interim financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A
review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Other matters

The figures for the unconsolidated condensed interim profit and loss account and unconsolidated
condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the quarter ended 30 June 2020 have not
been reviewed and we do not express a conclusion on them.

The engagement partner on the engagement resulting in this independent auditor's review report is M.
Rehan Chughtai.

Lahore

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co

Date: August 27, 2020 Chartered Accountants

MCB Bank Limited

Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2020

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Subordinated debt

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Share capital

Reserves

Surplus on revaluation of assets
Unappropriated profit

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

10
1
12
13

14

16
17
18

19
20

21
22

23

Unaudited

June 30, 2020

—_—
T
Y |
MCB
Bank for Life

Audited

December 31, 2019

144,167,677
14,701,174
2,056,775
928,707,595
460,611,078
57,585,682
880,772

58,893,352

132,704,797
12,542,239
1,090,058
748,764,502
496,678,874
58,271,245
957,552

64,142,748

1,667,604,105

1,5615,152,015

10,504,227
113,229,580
1,274,682,178

11,821,698
89,505,892
1,144,763,259

11,804,208 5,850,645
72,498,372 94,295,738
1,482,718,565 1,346,237,232
184,885,540 168,914,783
11,850,600 11,850,600
79,712,168 77,591,253
39,200,797 23,695,441
54,121,975 55,777,489
184,885,540 168,914,783

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

Y

(e g

Hammad Khalid
Chief Financial Officer

Imran Magbool
President / CEO

Mian Umer Mansha
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb

Director

Salman Khalid Butt

Director

1




MCB Bank Limited -v- MCB Bank Limited -v-
Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Profit & Loss Account (Un-audited) — Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-audited) ==
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
Quarter ended Half Year Quarter ended Half Year Quarter ended Half Year ended  Quarter ended Half Year ended
Note June 30, 2020 ended June 30, June 30, 2019 ended June 30, June 30,2020 June 30,2020  June 30,2019 June 30, 2019
2020 2019
Rupeesin '000 R ALY 1= L= 0V
Profit after taxation for the period 6,690,398 13,209,424 5,595,135 10,674,994
Mark-up / return / interest earned 25 36,112,002 75,211,630 31,750,823 59,132,742
Oth h ivei
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 26 16,406,846 39,198,774 17,429,817 31,332,982 er comprehensive income
Net mark-up / interest income 19,705,156 36,012,856 14,321,006 27,799,760 Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods:
Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches 200,145 799,973 1,289,581 1,617,407
Movement in surplus on revaluation of investments - net of tax 7,012,604 15,550,063 (1,668,743) (1,175,588)
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME 7,212,749 16,350,036 (379,162) 441,819
Fee and commission income 27 2,299,959 5,145,608 2,752,224 5,566,442 Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods:
Dividend income 310,199 533,799 520,879 710,261 Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligations - net of tax [ (1,738,103)] [ (1,738,103)] | (534,194)] | (534,194)]
Foreign exchange income 702,520 1,427,687 1,286,372 1,727,697 (1,738,103) (1.738,103) (534.194) (634.194)
Income/ (loss) from derivatives 3,502 (6,903) (19,666) (3,936) Total comprehensive income 12,165,044 27,821,357 4,681,779 10,582,619
Loss on securities 28 (sl IAET) (129,218) (117.785) The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.
Other Income 29 17,093 49,628 34,298 76,665
Total non-markup / interest Income 3,195,087 7,082,772 4,444,889 7,959,344
Total Income 22,900,243 43,095,628 18,765,895 35,759,104
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
Operating expenses 30 8,031,132 16,192,564 8,108,813 16,279,039
Workers welfare fund 227,788 445,087 183,384 364,971
Other charges 31 30,865 240,120 60,660 106,855
Total non-markup / interest expenses 8,289,785 16,877,771 8,352,857 16,750,865
Profit before provisions 14,610,458 26,217,857 10,413,038 19,008,239
Provisions / (reversals) and write offs - net 32 3,221,035 3,963,497 1,243,821 759,664
Extra ordinary / unusual items - - - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11,389,423 22,254,360 9,169,217 18,248,575
Taxation 33 4,699,025 9,044,936 3,574,082 7,573,581
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 6,690,398 13,209,424 5,595,135 10,674,994
Rupees:
Basic and diluted earnings per share 34 5.65 11.15 4.72 9.01
The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.
Yoo Arsngjl 6(5 Y% % Qo b e e @ o (% Qb
Imran Magbool Hammad Khalid Mian Umer Mansha Muhammad Ali Zeb Salman Khalid Butt Imran Magbool Hammad Khalid Mian Umer Mansha Muhammad Ali Zeb Salman Khalid Butt
12 President / CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director President / CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director 13
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MCB Bank Limited

Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Changes In Equity (Un-audited)
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020

= < ole S ol |= © o|e solg g <
& 322 2 838 I8 2 38 LB I8 S
& 35| SRS L 3 8(8 I3 IR <
k= 5 [zelg g9 |2 s ole gglg | B
3 S S 208 Y I I [ =R |= <R B
= 2 s e = s g © Fg R o P Reg I
< +Sle &8 = = S gl |e ool @ s = solg |z <3l § =
B g 1228 & 3 § S B IEE &8 3 § SEE B S8 8§ 8
= o + Sl = © =3 o olg o~ = o= =3 © ~ o olg ~ o Dl— o =3
2 o T3 & g < g g8 | s3ls 8 g€ 5 g8 Ix S8 8 3
Sz 8 53F 8 Y - 4 °l8 8 R I S IS s
£ e el o S = T [=2) o3 be) be) = = =|o o o == =
58 3 g7 = < fo |3 @ |2 = SIS C EEE =2
g
5
e
i
) o = = < ~|~ T @ < =
s |3 2 5 3 3 == S 8 3 S
I S 8 8 S = 3 8 S =
2 & s o = S o =
sS1=E S =1 & 2 3 i I & B = 3
5 e = 3 = I s[5 4 S 1y S
B < B ~ == >
x = = B =2
w g
8
=
S =5 HE = olo ~ oo
; 3 6] S 2|2 1] 3|8
@ I - Bl by S5 = g[8
£ P v I o = ~ = =
5 B8 gle = oo b 38
£ 5 == < 5 < s v
Z o]l
A
=
s o s
el e 8 3 8
= S S S
g 2 g B g
s 8 2 2 2
3l = 2 £ <
s [=
gl 2 =
H T S
S
o =
»
S~ = < © = o
5 8 1] 8 5 g
= 2 8 3 3 e =3 S
s 2 23 ~ © =3 =3 o
£ = o © N e re} I
ER & s S 8 8 S
= o - = - - =
& e & 5] s
° © | = S|z - ol
2 2 sls 3 212 > i
5 3 22 8 5| 2 5|5
o 8 & N NS < o o 3|
29 N —|= =4 ~Irs ~ k= b=
s © w©|w© N wlwn © ~|~
§ ¢ > =] =X >
£s = p) ey & B
EE]
[
2
s
~ ~ ~
3 > = >
5 < S <
2 = ] 8
8 8 S s
=
=%
g
g
£
= bt = =
2 = = =
g = = =
2 5 M 5
5 2 2 2
® < I <
5 & & &
[
= s o s
2 3 S S
=4 2 3 2
k] [=3 =3 [=3
© n jrs] 3
° 8 2 B
g = = =
s = = > =
2 P
L I ~ L S L
>
g 2
> 8 S
2 5 g & ¢ g
2 e 8 8 S = g §
& 5 5 - 85 = & 8
.1 = = 82 = 2 S <
g 8 s = © 5 B 8 ] k3 < 8 ; °
S 2 2 F 2 & 2 = S 2
s 8 ] ; [ 5 £ 2 P oo s 8 2
S o a > Y S 2 B g = S = 28 < @ =
S g E 2 & =K £ & 3 5 5 £ 3590 S 2 5
3 s E 3 5 5 & g £ 8 s 2 5 Q5 3 s 5
= S @ 2 T T Z 38 2 a @ T T & ] @
8 o Ex ® @ & @ o £ x s @ SE 2 o £ x
T @ S s = 2 5 [=] -3 Loy S s > = o = D S s
s 2 =L 8 I E € - £ 2 =2 2 I er s B =2
s 5 5 £ = 858 2 £ 5 5 % = 58 S 5 5
B s Sg £ 8 8 = 2 g3 Sg S B 30 3 = L3
2 3 2 8 g o g s E B 2 g g o0 2 B 2
L T x y =2 £} ! = h-] E-3 o < y =3 s e 3 o = y
228 g § 5 g8 8 = %38 z £ g5 88 2 23 E]
S g 2 s ©v &8
o oo 5 2 3 &8 5 2 o S 5 § 3 545 o @z 5
£ £35 s &2 8 §°¢ g2 £ £35 s = 8 22 £ £% g5
© = EB® 5 5 = & L Ew s 5 2% = =
© 5 5% g 5 8 58 2 5 58 8 § g 3828 o 5 58 ]
S % E 8 3§ 8 =92 £ £ E T k<] - 3 =29 p=Y b £ & k<)
L2 =0 ° g g = o< » 5 g x@ ° € 5 £ << 8 2 xo ° 2
S 8§ & 2 g g ¢ <~ g 2 € § & 2 & 3§ ¢ g9 < & ©E& 2 g
> 8 28 s 8§ & g ¢ & S = 2 238 s § 8 g £ 5 8 28 s g
& £ S¢c 2 g 2 £ &% E £ 52 2 g2 g £ ®% 5 £ S= 2 =
g T < £8 = = £ £8 2 T < S8
° ° e = 5 = F— s e = 2 2 9 ° g =
E = 22 = 5865 5 °2 &= 2 5 =2 <£2 = B85 T ©° BE E = £2 =~ ©5
8 G 5B 5§ Bo 8 £ 298 2 2 3 £3 S 8o S £ &3 g 7] =3 S5 B o
g 2 s & £ 82 % E g5 B < = 2 52 £ ge S = 838 38 2 S & E=] 2]
[=] o B o 2 aun = = 3 = £ s T2 2 a un =3 = == 2 o =2 =2 [
2 g2 L © 2 = = 5 £ © < 22 2 g a 2 ISR 22
- xS = © @ o S © — xS El @ v T T <@ 8 @
s 8 58 @ &8 £ g2 372 s g 8 52 s €% N g 272 s & 88 a £33
@ S T =1 4 28 @ @ o T =1 3 S @3 o = =}
S Es5 T £S5 2 % g 8 S £ E 8§ 2 £5 & § 8§ & E &E 2 O£
8 s %8 = 88 £ @ 8 2 s 5 %8 5 58 o 8 s S =8 5 53
e ° 23 2 52 8 ¢ S E s 2 2 I3 2 Bx = @ EE e ° 3 5 B =
= & 2 = = & 2 = £ = = Z 2
§ E5£ § & s £ 8 § S T 8£ s 5 S 5 88 § § &2 s s
m ° ad [ = i = a 5§ 2 a0o = = » = £E S8 & &0 SIS

Uy o :

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Director

W—/Wf& <

Hammad Khalid
Chief Financial Officer

Mian Umer Mansha
Director

Imran Magbool
President / CEO

e

—
Ihal
MCB
Bank for Life

,925,300)
926,300
(11,850,600)
184,885,540

L o
g 3glg e
2 3|18 |
8 88 (5
s wls [
&8 5
S g8 [
w ol [
~
5|
|
o
S
2
S
of
5|
=
3|
©
S
o
8|
S|
=
S|
3|
|
ol
3
3|
=
=
5|
o
B
o
i
5
B
~
5|
|
g
8|
=
S
2
§
=
E
= £
| =
o)
2
3|
g
ol
gl
3|
=
3
£l
@
L 2
8
<
2
Py
S
2
=
2
3
@
=23 3
S 9 2
=g 3
-‘gf(\l a
0 < 5
85> 2
5
8= S
SETS 5
>3 5 2
288 5
S 8 8
2o 2 =
5002 g
sgs s
88 b=
B 5 &
Su & <
B
8 S £
So w6 o <4
$ O g I =
5 4 & S 3
EC ' <
3® T s
= s
£2 8 2 3
S 52 S =
S = s 3
=] = e
S S < «© S
sS2% 2 a
S5 ® < =2
S8 © @ i
8 8 s
w © E 2 @
25 = s 3
S 2 = 5
=i 2 38 &

Qo bt

Director

For details of reserves, please refer note 21 to these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

Salman Khalid Butt

interim financial

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these

MCB Bank Limited -v-
MCB

Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Cash Flow Statement (Un-audited) ——

For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020

Note Half Year ended
June 30, 2020

Half Year ended
June 30, 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 22,254,360 18,248,575
Less: Dividend income (533,799) (710,261)
. 21,720,561 17,538,314
Adjustments:
Depreciation on fixed assets 30 980,049 930,597
Depreciation on right of use assets 30 600,945 593,847
Depreciation on non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 30 15,675 24,124
Amortization 30 155,492 128,980
Provisions / (reversals) and write offs - net 32 3,963,497 759,664
Workers welfare fund 445,087 364,971
Gain on sale of fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired-net 29 (18,950) (36,641)
Charge / (reversal) for defined benefit plans 161,546 (32,175)
Interest expensed on lease liability against right-of-use assets 605,176 302,045
Unrealized (gain)/loss on revaluation of investments classified as held for trading 28 (13,078) 9,237
6,895,439 3,044,649
28,616,000 20,582,963
Decrease / (increase) in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions (966,717) 30,799,110
Held-for-trading securities (6,591,374) 3,303,019
Advances 32,275,576 (9,780,771)
Others assets (excluding advance taxation) 2,214,965 (15,414,213)
26,932,450 8,907,145
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills Payable (1,317,471) (5,185,586)
Borrowings from financial institutions 24,437,832 (31,436,836)
Deposits 129,918,919 99,593,533
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation) (25,220,404) 11,287,055
127,818,876 74,258,166
Defined benefits paid (165,300) (166,874)
Income tax paid (7,107,083) (332,689)
Net cash flow from operating activities 176,094,943 103,248,711

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net investments in available-for-sale securities

(158,168,756) (51,375,701)

Net investments in held-to-maturity securities 8,562,322 543,145
Dividends received 506,135 679,473
Investments in fixed assets (833,424) (2,707,878)
Investments in Intangible assets (77,410) (148,681)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 28,597 87,749
Proceeds from sale of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - 40,000
Investments in non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - (64,445)
Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches 799,973 1,617,407

Net cash flow used in investing activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(149,182,563) (51,328,931)

Payments of subordinated debt - (3,891,019)
Payment of lease liability against right-of-use-assets (842,551) (636,608)
Dividend paid (11,733,870) (9,394,092)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (12,576,421) (13,921,719)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3,766,686 4,750,546
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 18,102,645 42,748,607
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 140,130,903 108,430,862
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 158,233,548 151,179,469

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

(e g

Salman Khalid Butt

Director
15

Y

Mian Umer Mansha
Director

t ’ :
Hammad Khalid
Chief Financial Officer

Imran Magbool
President / CEO

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Director




16

MCB Bank Limited ﬁ
MCEB
Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) m

For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020

1.

2.2

23

24

3.2

33

34

35

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

MCB Bank Limited (the 'Bank’) is a banking company incorporated in Pakistan and is engaged in commercial banking and related
services. The Bank's ordinary shares are listed on the Pakistan stock exchange. The Bank's Registered Office and Principal Office are
situated at MCB -15 Main Gulberg, Lahore. The Bank operates 1,400 branches (2019: 1,399 branches) within Pakistan and 11
branches (2019: 11 branches) outside Pakistan (including the Karachi Export Processing Zone branch).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements represent separate financial statements of MCB Bank Limited. The
consolidated condensed interim financial statements of the Group are being issued separately.

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking system to Islamic modes, the State
Bank of Pakistan has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade-related modes of financing include
purchase of goods by banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at appropriate profit in price on deferred payment
basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these unconsolidated condensed interim
financial statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilized and the appropriate portion of profit thereon.

The unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Bank's functional and
presentation currency. The amounts are rounded off to the nearest thousand.

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that
certain classes of fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are stated at revalued amounts and certain
investments and derivative financial instruments have been marked to market and are carried at fair value. In addition, obligations in
respect of staff retirement benefits are carried at present value.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for
interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under
the CompaniesAct, 2017,

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the SBP
and the SECP differ with the requirements of IAS 34 or IFAS, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
CompaniesAct, 2017 and the said directives, shall prevail.

The State Bank of Pakistan has deferred the applicability of International Financial Reporting Standard 9, 'Financial Instruments'
through BPRD Circular No. 04 of 2019 dated October 23, 2019 and International Accounting Standards 40, 'Investment Property' for
Banking Companies through BSD Circular No. 10 dated August 26, 2002. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) has deferred applicability of IFRS-7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" on banks through S.R.O 411(1) /2008 dated April 28,
2008. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these unconsolidated
condensed interim financial statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements
prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan through various circulars.

The SECP vide its notification SRO 633 (1)/2014 dated 10 July 2014, adopted IFRS 10 effective from the periods starting from June 30,
2014. However, vide its notification SRO 56 (1)/2016 dated January 28, 2016, it has been notified that the requirements of IFRS 10 and
section 228 of the Companies Act, 2017 will not be applicable with respect to the investment in mutual funds established under trust
structure.

The disclosures made in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have been limited based on a format prescribed
by the SBP vide BPRD Circular Letter No. 05 of 2019 dated March 22, 2019 and IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting. These
unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in the audited
annual financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the audited annual unconsolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended December 31,2019.

Amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective in the current period
There are certain new standards and interpretations of and amendments to existing accounting standards that have become

applicable to the Bank for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. These are considered either to not be relevant or
notto have any significantimpact on the Bank's unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

MCB Bank Limited -v-
MCB
Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) m

For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020

3.6

6.1

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
The following new standards and amendments to existing accounting standards will be effective from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standard oramendment:

Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)

January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2021

IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments)
IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment ( Amendments)

IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets ( Amendments)
IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

The SECP, through SRO 229(1)/2019 dated February 14, 2019, has notified that IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, is applicable for
accounting periods ending on or after June 30, 2019. However, as per BPRD Circular No. 04 of 2019 dated October 23, 2019 of SBP,
effective date of IFRS 9 implementation is January 01, 2021.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement, addresses recognition, classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The standard has also introduced a new impairment model for financial assets
which requires recognition of impairment charge based on an 'expected credit losses' (ECL) approach rather than the 'incurred credit
losses' approach as currently followed. The ECL approach has an impact on all assets of the Bank which are exposed to credit risk. The
Bank s in the process of assessing the fullimpact of this standard.

There are other new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the Bank's accounting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2021 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Bank's operations and are
therefore not detailed in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies and methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated condensed interim
financial statements are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the audited annual unconsolidated financial statements of
the Bank for the year ended December 31,2019.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The basis for accounting estimates adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements are the
same as that applied in the preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 except as
explainedinnote 6.1.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Bank are consistent with those disclosed in the unconsolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019. These risk management policies continue to remain robust and the Bank
is reviewing its portfolio regularly and conducts rapid portfolio reviews in line with emerging risks.

The COVID - 19 pandemic has taken a toll on all economies and emerged as a contagion risk around the globe, including Pakistan. To
reduce the impact on businesses and economies in general, regulators / governments across the globe have introduced a host of
measures on both the fiscal and economic fronts.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has also responded to the crisis by cutting the Policy Rate by 625 basis points during the period to 7%
in June 2020. Other regulatory measures to provide an impetus to economic activity include the following:

— Reduction in the capital conservation buffer by 100 basis points to 1.5%;

— Increasing the regulatory limit on extension of credit to SMEs to Rs 180 million;

— Relaxing the debt burden ratio for consumer loans from 50% to 60%;

— Allowing banks to defer borrowers’ principal loan payments by one year and or restructure / reschedule loans for borrowers who
require relief of principal repayment exceeding one year and / or mark-up with no reflection on credit history; and

— Introduction of refinancing schemes for payment of wages and salaries.

COVID 19 has impacted the banks in Pakistan from various facets which include muted credit risk increase, reduced fee income due to
slowdown in economic activity, branch closures and cyber security threat management.

Credit Risk Management

The Risk Management function of the Bank is regularly conducting assessments of the credit portfolio to identify borrowers most likely
to get affected due to changes in the business and economic environment. The Bank has further strengthened its risk appetite and
related credit review procedures in the light of COVID-19, which would insulate the Bank from any unforeseen shock .
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6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

As the full potential effect of the economic stress posed by the COVID-19 outbreak is difficult to predict, the management has exercised
prudence and booked General Provision of Rs 4 billion during the half year ended June 30, 2020.

Liquidity Risk Management

In view of the relaxation granted by SBP for deferral of principal and markup and rescheduling of loans there will be an impact on the
maturity profile of the Bank. The Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Bank is continuously monitoring the liquidity position and
the Bank is confident that the liquidity buffer currently maintained is sufficient to address any requirement, as reflected by the cushion in
liquidity ratios above the statutory requirement.

Equity Risk Management

During the first six months the Pakistan Stock Exchange fell by 15.5%, triggering an impairment of Rs 1,906.830 million. The Bank has recorded an impairment of Rs
1,336.097 million resulting from the valuation of listed equity securities held as Available for Sale in the first half and has deferred the recognition of the remaining
impairment to the remainder part of the calendar year 2020 and has been taken to deficit on revaluation of investments as allowed by the State Bank of Pakistan
under the Para (viii) of BPRD Circular Letter No. 13 of 2020 dated March 26, 2020.

Operational Risk Management

The Bank is closely monitoring the situation and has invoked required actions to ensure the safety and security of Bank staff while
ensuring uninterrupted service to customers. The senior management of the Bank is continuously monitoring the situation and is taking
timely decisions to resolve any concerns.

Business Continuity Plans (BCP) for respective areas are in place and duly tested. The Bank has significantly enhanced monitoring of
cyber security risk during these times. The remote work capabilities were enabled for staff, where required and related risk and control
measures were assessed to ensure that the Bank’s assets are protected from emerging cyber threats and comply with the regulatory
protocols. The Bank is communicating with its customers for their financial transactions to be conducted through digital channel
offerings. The Bank has taken all measures to ensure that service levels are maintained, customer complaints are resolved and
turnaround times are monitored to meet customer requirements and expectations.

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)

In order to encourage Banks to continue lending, the SBP has relaxed the Capital Conversion Buffer (CCB) requirements to 1.5%,
resultingin a 1% decline in CAR requirements for all Tiers.

Suspension of Dividends

The SBP through its Circular Letter No. BPRD/BA & CPD/006315-2/20 dated April 22, 2020 has advised that banks which had declared
dividend for the quarter ended March 31, 2020 should suspend cash dividend distribution for the next two quarters.

Unaudited Audited
June 30, 2020 December 31,
’ 2019

CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

In hand
Local currency 21,802,586 18,738,087
Foreign currencies 3,656,347 2,201,941
25,458,933 20,940,028
With State Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current accounts 70,610,977 56,533,231
Foreign currency current accounts 876,598 277,126
Foreign currency deposit accounts 10,800,394 14,023,401
. ) 82,287,969 70,833,758
With other central banks in
Foreign currency current accounts 10,883,558 16,220,148
With National Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current accounts 25,467,850 24,390,028
Prize bonds 69,367 320,835
144,167,677 132,704,797
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
Outside Pakistan
In current accounts 8,683,795 8,396,527
In deposit accounts 6,017,379 4,145,712
14,701,174 12,542,239
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Call / clean money lendings 1,647,040 880,853
Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repo) 409,735 209,205
2,056,775 1,090,058

MCB Bank Limited

Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited)
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020

251

13,110
10,689,171

9,475,721
9,488,831
671,109,638
16,286,886
1,306,414
3,670,315
692,373,253
16,205,038
9,334,137
8,317,030
33,856,205
700,401
12,345,812
748,764,502
22,820,226
5,316,208
28,136,434
7,865,388
3,275,539

(29,964)

(422,043)
2,823,532

Carrying Value
Audited
December 31, 2019
Provision

(@,128)
(48)
(@,176)
4,981,349
1,497 556
(3,359)
13,295
5,488,841
6,484,665
6,397,772
52,783,015
15,169
1,415,019
190,967

----------Rupees in '000--------
NPI

Surplus /
(Deficit)
Unaudited
June 30, 2020
46,385,243
10,689,171
(1,224,052)
10,895,307
Audited December 31, 2019

(118)
(533,788)
(3,569)
(725)
(10,689,171)

Audited December 31, 2019
(10,148,760)
(10,148,760)
(2,211)
(539,686)

Provision for
diminution
Provision

118
9,867,925
8,320,599

34,395,891

13,158

Cost/
Amortised cost
9,479,849 ‘ ‘
9,493,007
666,128,289
24,938,090
1,309,773
3,657,020
696,033,172
16,207,249
700,401
12,346,537
752,969,008
Unaudited June 30, 2020
NPI

Rupees in '000
16,093,283
16,093,283

851,943,147
16,038,055
1,886,722
4,496,848
874,364,772
7,421,706
9,379,445
8,402,176
25,203,327
700,401
12,345,812
928,707,595

Carrying Value

Surplus /
(Deficit)
13,078
13,078
30,533,818
(184,987)
10,850
52,334
30,412,015
30,425,093

(3,535)

(10,260,805)
(725)

(10,895,307)

(118)

(606,616)

(10,264,340)
(2,081)
(21.427)

Unaudited June 30, 2020
(630,242)

Provision for
diminution

16,080,205
16,080,205
821,412,864
26,483,847
1,875,872
4,444,514
854,217,097
7,423,787
118
9,986,061
8,423,603
25,833,569
700,401
12,346,537
909,177,809

Cost/
Amortised cost

1ts given as collateral

Provincial Government Securities
Provision for diminution in value of investments

Non Government Debt Securities

Non Government Debt Securities
Foreign Securities

Foreign Securities

Federal Government Securities
Federal Government Securities
Reversals for the period / year
Reversal on disposals

Federal Government Securities
Shares and units

Shares
- Pakistan Investment Bonds

INVESTMENTS
Investments by type:
Held-for-trading securities
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Associates

Subsidiaries

Total Investments

- Market Treasury Bills
Adjustments

Charge / (reversals)

Charge for the period / year
Amounts written off

Closing Balance

Category of classification

10.2.2 Particulars of provision against debt securities

10.2.1 Opening balance

0.1
10.1.1
10.2

----------Rupees in '000--------

Domestic

72,828
461,078

145,656
461,078

Doubtful
Loss

—_—
S
Y |
MCB
Bank for Life

606,734
606,734

606,734
606,734

10.2.3 In addition to the above, overseas branches hold a general provision of Rs 27.043 million (December 31, 2019: Rs 5.780 million) in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.

533,906

606,734

The market value of securities classified as held-to-maturity as at June 30, 2020 amounted to Rs. 25,091.133 million (December 31, 2019: Rs. 33,464.168 million).

10.4  The Bank is in the process of disposal of its wholly owned subsidiary “MCB Financial Services Limited” subject to all regulatory and shareholders approvals.

0.3

1
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MCB Bank Limited -v- MCB Bank Limited -v-
Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) MCIB Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) MCIB
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
) Audited ) )
Note Unaudited December 31, Unaudited Audited
June 30, 2020 2019 June 30,2020  December 31,
in 2019
13. INTANGIBLEASSETS o Rupees in ‘000-----— .
i K --—-—---—--—--Rupees in '000--------
Capital work-in-progress 330,894 316,742
16. BILLS PAYABLE
Computer software 549,878 640,810
880,772 957,552 In Pakistan 10,429,940 11,786,207
Unaudited half Unaudited half Outside Pakistan 74,287 35491
Year ended June Year ended June 10,504,227 11,821,698
30, 2020 30, 2019
---------- R in '000--------
131 Additions to intangible assets upeesin 17. BORROWINGS
The following additions have been made to intangible assets during the period: Secured
Capital work-in-progress 14,152 - Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan
Directly purchased G2 148,681 Under export refinance scheme 34,931,001 33,862,262
77,410 148,681
- Under long term financing facility 20,360,284 18,138,200
Unaudited Audited Under renewable energy performance platform 77,834 85,062
June 30. 2020 December 31,
une 30, 2019 Under payment of Wages & Salaries 1,984,481 -
14. OTHERASSETS T Rupees in '000------- Under financing facility for storage of agricultural produce 215,346 188,809
Income/ mark-up accrued in local currency 24,567,029 22,099,766 57,568,946 52,274,333
Income/ mark-up accrued in foreign currencies 668,412 558,407 )
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 2,070,627 3,720,012 Repurchase agreement borrowings 52,657,800 28,099,229
Compensation for delayed income tax refunds 133,809 133,809 Total secured 110,226,746 80,373,562
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 3,235,832 3,251,508
Branch adjustment account - 37,075 Unsecured
Mark to market gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 2,888,954 3,875,681 Borrowings from other financial institution 1,937,194 774,914
Unrealized gain on derivative financial instruments 1,186,368 1,236,517 Call borrowings 268,051 6,845,683
Acceptances 20 17,493,374 18,152,032 Overdrawn nostro accounts 635,303 1,349,447
Receivable from the pension fund 1,239,559 3,605,121 Others 162,286 162,286
Others Gg'ggg'g;g 62'322'22; Total unsecured 3,002,834 9,132,330
S S 113,229,580 89,505,892
Less: Provision held against other assets 141 2,644,288 2,604,137
. 18. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
Other Assets (net of provision) 58,215,692 63,465,088
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets Unaudited June 30, 2020 Audited December 31, 2019
o . ) . In Local In Foreign In Local In Foreign
acquired in satisfaction of claims 677,660 677,660 Currency currencies Total Currency currencies Total
Other Assets - total 58,893,352 64,142,748 Rupees in'000
14.1  Provision held against other assets Customers
Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 90,938 90,938 Current deposits 401,226,780 48,508,279 449,735,059 336,833,189 51,619,020 388,452,209
Claims against fraud and forgeries 499,238 516,497 Savings deposits 639,622,891 49,646,526 689,269,417 552,121,108 45,357,701 597,478,809
Others 2,054,112 1.996,702 Term deposit 53,861,722 || 13,656,232 67,517,954 85,296,905 15,518,802 100,815,707
2,644,288 2,604,137 erm deposits 4= o dTe =90, 18, ©1,
. . . Others 30,740,413 3,340,067 34,080,480 21,537,429 2,854,010 24,391,439
14.1.1 Movement in provision held against other assets
Opening balance 2,604,137 2,550,584 1,125,451,806 115,151,104 1,240,602,910 995,788,631 115,349,533 1,111,138,164
Charge for the period / year 1,311 12,587 Financial Institutions
Reversals (19,188) (36,023) Current deposits 12,080,416 1,658,128 13,738,544 9,421,664 2,093,098 11,514,762
17,877 23,436
( ) ( ) Savings deposits 13,275,059 41,625 13,316,684 13,005,530 26,432 13,031,962
Amounts written off (3,922) (3,638)
Exchange and other adjustments 61,950 80,627 Term deposits 1,068,968 5,794,997 6,863,965 1,143,468 7,741,444 8,884,912
Closing balance 2,644,288 2,604,137 Others o 160,075 160,075 - 193,459 193,459
15. CONTINGENT ASSETS 26,424,443 7,654,825 34,079,268 23,570,662 10,054,433 33,625,095
There were no contingent assets of the Bank as at June 30, 2020 (2019: NIL). 1,151,876,249 122,805,929  1,274,682,178  1,019,359,293 125,403,966 1,144,763,259
22 23




MCB Bank Limited -v- MCB Bank Limited -v-
Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) MCIB Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) MCIB
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
Note Unaudited Audited 211 Under IFRS-3 a bargain purchase represents an economic gain which should be immediately recognized by the acquirer as income.

June 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 However, the amount of bargain purchase gain was not been taken to the profit and loss account as the SBP, through its letter

BPRD(R&PD)/2017/14330 dated June 13, 2017 recommended that the amount of gain may be routed directly into equity as a Non-
distributable Capital Reserve (NCR). The NCR may become available for distribution through a stock dividend only with prior approval

19. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES of the SBP. The Bank, before distribution of the gain as a stock dividend, may adjust any subsequent provisions/deficit, assessed by the

Taxable Temporary Differences on Bank or recommended by the Banking Inspection Department of SBP, in the acquired assets and liabilities of NIB Bank Limited against
- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 1,322,477 1,346,550 the NCR.
- Surplus on revaluation of Non-banking assets 237,181 237,181 212 Statutory reserve represents amount set aside as per the requirements of section 21 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962.
- Accelerated tax depreciation 1,743,431 1,754,097
- Receivable from pension fund 433,846 1,261,793 Unaudited Audited
Note naudte December 31
- Business combination 705,218 705,218 June 30, 2020 2019 ’
- Surplus/deficit on revaluation of investments 10,644,205 2,271,094 22. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS Rupees in '000-------
. . 15,086,358 7,575,933 Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of
Deductible Temporary Differences on - Available for sale securities 10.1 30,412,015 6,488,841
- Provision against advances (3,282,150)] | (1,725,288)| - Fixed Assets 20,314,985 || 20,383,765
(3,282,150) (1,725,288) - Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 677,660 677,660
51,404,660 27,550,266
20. OTHER LIABILITIES i 2t 5,850,645 Deferred tax on surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of:
. . - Available for sale securities 10,644,205 2,271,094
Mark-up/ return/ interest payable in local currency 3,200,695 22,831,727 - Fixed Assets 1,322,477 1,346,550
Mark-up/ return/ interest payable in foreign currencies 248,030 649,536 - Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 237,181 237,181
Unearned commission and income on bills discounted 187,239 181,751 12,203,863 3,854,825
Accrued expenses 4,639,937 5,397,614 Sl 20 75 23,695 441
Provision for taxation (provisions less payments) 9,541,063 6,119,564 23. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Workers' welfare fund 20.1 8,318,793 7,873,706 -Guarantees 23.1 181,579,424 || 173,535,128
Acceptances 14 17,493.374 18,152,032 -Commltme'ms o 23.2 337,407,733 649,690,990
R - -Other contingent liabilities 233 30,747,517 27,920,652
Unclaimed / dividends payable . 1,709,709 1,592,979 549.734.674 851.146.770
Mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 2,382,336 4,642,692 231 Guarantees:
Unrealised loss on derivative financial instruments 1,182,033 1,232,806 Financial guarantees 151,387,602 141,181,839
Staff welfare fund 3,755 5,727 Performance guarantees 28,874,915 30,401,373
Provision for employees' compensated absences 1,041,980 939,495 Other guarantees 1,316,907 1,951,916
Provision for post retirement medical benefits 2,094,346 1,921,348 ) 181,579,424 173,535,128
Provision for employees' contributory benevolent scheme 250,398 221,193 23.2  Commitments: )
Retention mone 20657 20657 Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions
y . ’ ! - letters of credit 130,557,754 145,217,983
Insura.nce payable against consumer assets 562,087 655,146 Commitments in respect of:
Unclaimed balances 892,242 993,105 - forward foreign exchange contracts 23.2.1 180,981,528 405,615,318
Duties and taxes payable 1,584,504 753,674 - forward government securities transactions 23.2.2 17,218,440 87,696,638
Provision against off-balance sheet obligations 46,653 46,581 - derivatives 2323 7,415,438 10,244,806
Security deposits against lease 509,250 491,366 Commitments for acquisition of:
Branch adjustment account 101,037 - B loperat]ng fixed assets il 2Ae1{2E 859,953
o . i - intangible assets 57,598 56,292
Lease liability against right of use assets 8,089,556 8,295,864 337 407733 549,690 990
Others 8,398,698 11,277,175 23.2.1 . . £ forei h = =
7 498372 94 295 738 3.2.1 Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts
- = = = Purchase 109,640,916 217,809,539
20.1 . o ) ) Sale 71,340,612 187,805,779
-1 Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016 has held that the amendments made in the law introduced by the 180,981,528 405,615,318

Federal Government for the levy of Workers Welfare Fund were not lawful. The Federal Board of Revenue has filed review petitions

against this order which are currently pending. 23.2.2 Commitments in respect of forward government securities transactions

Purchase 16,956,208 82,284,304

Legal advice obtained on the matter indicates that consequent to filing of these review petitions the judgment may not currently be Sale 262,232 5,412,334

treated as conclusive. Accordingly, the Bank maintained its provision in respect of WWF. 17,218,440 87,696,638

Note Unaudited Audited 23.2.3 Commitments in respect of derivatives
June 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 FX options (notional)

__________ Rupees in '000----—- Purchase | 63,433 | 431,449

21. RESERVES Sale 63,433 431,449

Share premium 23,751,114 23,751,114 Cross Currency Swaps (notional) 126,866 862,898
Non- distributable capital reserve - gain on bargain purchase option 21.1 908,317 908,317 Purchase | 3,408,368 | | 4,428,663 |

Exchange translation reserve 3,475,104 2,675,131 Sale 3,563,704 4,636,745

Statutory reserve 21.2 32,977,633 31,656,691 Interest Rate Swaps (notional) 6,972,072 9,065,408

General reserve 18,600,000 18,600,000 Purchase 316,500 316,500

79,712,168 77,591,253 7,415,438 10,244,806
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MCB Bank Limited -v- MCB Bank Limited -v-
Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) MCIB Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) MCIB
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
23.24  The Bank makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but these being revocable commitments do not Yngg:gzg 33::3 Yléjgrag:gzg gj:e
attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn.
Audited Note 30, 2020 30, 2019
. i S
Unaudited e 27. FEE & COMMISSION INCOME === Rupees in '000--------
Note June 30. 2020 December 31,
’ 2019 Branch banking customer fees 941,135 943,429
. P Rupees in '000-------- Consumer finance related fees 187,430 153,475
23.3  Other contingent liabilities . .
Clai inst the Bank not ack ledaed as debt 9331 0 o 27 920 652 Card related fees (debit and credit cards) 1,511,464 1,410,047
aims against the Bank not acknowledged as debls o T 2, Credit related fees 14,765 108,557
2331 These represent certain claims by third parties against the Bank, which are being contested in the Courts of law. The management Investment banking fee 71,482 85,381
is of the view that these relate to the normal course of business and the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is remote. Commission on trade 633,111 732,257
234 Taxation Comm?ssion on guarantees 295,762 325,513
For assessment year 1988-89 through tax year 2018, the tax department disputed Bank's treatment on certain issues, where the Comm!ss!on on cash manag.ement. . Aeis il 334,914
Bank's appeals are pending at various appellate forums, entailing an additional tax liability of Rs. 1,487 million (2019: Rs. 1,487 Commission on remittances including home remittances 514,359 565,634
million). Such issues inter alia principally include disallowance of expenses for non deduction of withholding tax and non Commission income - Bancassurance 474,901 647,898
availability of underlying records, provision for non performing loans, attribution of expenses to heads of income other than income Rent on lockers 102.233 120.378
from business and disallowance of credit for taxes paid in advance / deducted at source. e - . ' '
Commission on utility bills 36,734 49,115
The Bank has filed appeals which are pending at various appellate forums. In addition, certain decisions made in favour of the Commission on investments services 17,503 25,349
Bank are being contested by the department at higher forums. No provision has been made in these unconsolidated condensed Other Commission 57.737 64.495
interim financial statements regarding the aforesaid additional tax demand and already issued favourable decisions where the 5 145‘608 5 566‘442
department is in appeal, as the management is of the view that the issues will be decided in the Bank's favour as and when these 2 2 2 4
are taken up by the Appellate Authorities. 28. GAIN ON SECURITIES, NET
24. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS Realised 28.1 (80,125) (108,548)
Unaudited June 30, 2020 Unrealised - held for trading 10.1 13,078 (9,237)
Cross Currency Swaps Interest Rate Swaps FX Options (67,047) (117,785
Notional Mark to market Notional Mark to market Notional Mark to market 28.1 Realised gain / (loss) on:
Principal gain / loss Principal gain / loss Principal gain / loss Federal Government Securities 183,380 15,976
Total Rupeesin ‘000 Shares (266,359) (124,524)
Hedging 3.408,368 | | 1,180,562 | | 316,500 | | 3,040 | | 63.433 | | 2.766 Others 2,854 -
Market Making 3,563,704 (1,179,267) = = 63,433 (2,766) (80,125) (108,548)
Audited December 31, 2019 29. OTHER INCOME
Total Rupeesin '000 Rent on property 30,678 40,024
Hedging | 4.428,663 | | 1,218,634 | | 316,500 | | 11,510 | | 431,449 | | 2.683 | Gain on sale of fixed assets-net 18,950 36,641
Market Making 4,636,745 (1,226,433) . - 431,449 (2,683) 49,628 76,665
Unaudited half Unaudited half 30. OPERATING EXPENSES
Year ended June Year ended June .
30, 2020 30, 2019 Total compensation expense 7,936,780 7,247,160
---------- Rupees in '000---—---—- Property expense
25. MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EARNED Rent and taxes 82,632 185,941
Loans and advances 25,962,430 26,608,927 Insurance 11,507 10,590
Investments 48,366,469 28,738,340 Utilities cost 507,439 487,006
Lendings to financial institutions 736,991 3,534,613 Fuel expense generators 156,053 264,488
Balances with banks 145,740 250,862 Secur.lty (|nclud.|ng guards) o 621,515 762,888
Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges) 310,135 456,680
75,211,630 59,132,742 - )
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 600,945 593,847
26. MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EXPENSED Depreciation 304,520 236,417
. 2,594,746 2,997,947
Deposits 33,820,985 27,049,029 Information technology expenses
Borrowings 3,572,092 2,676,136 Software maintenance 600,676 648,972
Subordinated debt _ 213,604 Hardware maintenance 116,075 183,424
Cost of foreign currency swaps against Depreciation 262,974 224,357
foreign currency deposits / borrowings Amortisation (B 128,980
g y.aep 9 1,200,521 1,092,168 Network charges 301,910 281,059
Unwinding cost of liability against right-of-use assets 605,176 302,045 Insurance 1,876 1,566
39,198,774 31,332,982 1,439,003 1,468,358
26 27
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Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited)

For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020

31.

32.

33.

34.

Note

Other operating expenses
Directors' fees and allowances
Legal and professional charges
Outsourced services costs
Travelling and conveyance
NIFT clearing charges
Depreciation

Depreciation on non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
Training and development
Postage and courier charges
Communication

Stationery and printing
Marketing, advertisement & publicity
Donations

Auditors' remuneration

Cash transportation charges
Repair and maintenance
Subscription

Entertainment

Remittance charges

Brokerage expenses

Card related expenses

CNIC verification charges
Insurance

Others

OTHER CHARGES

Penalties of State Bank of Pakistan
VAT & National Building tax & Crop Insurance Levy

PROVISIONS / (REVERSALS) & WRITE OFFS - NET
Reversal against balance with Banks

Provision for diminution in value of investments 10.2.1
Provision / (reversal) against loans and advances 11.3
Reversal against other assets 14.11

Recovery of written off / charged off bad debts

TAXATION
Current
Prior years
Deferred

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit after tax

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Unaudited half
Year ended June

Bank for Life

Unaudited half
Year ended June

30, 2020 30, 2019
---------- Rupees in '000--------
21,956 23,347
145,138 177,888
340,925 338,789
119,966 151,279
82,632 72,992
412,555 469,823
15,675 24,124
13,749 21,269
136,650 143,410
164,080 174,825
270,983 358,820
330,612 402,043
112,596 -
16,298 14,406
338,437 367,222
165,097 182,326
10,154 4,239
83,638 113,825
95,524 103,543
17,229 14,970
419,694 444,920
53,129 112,886
743,134 716,257
112,184 132,371
4,222,035 4,565,574
16,192,564 16,279,039
183,541 15,252
56,579 91,603
240,120 106,855
(1,813) (507)
190,967 1,570,509
3,856,662 (701,246)
(17,877) (29,144)
(64,442) (79,948)
3,963,497 759,664
10,576,822 6,892,716
- 450,438
(1,531,886) 230,427
9,044,936 7,573,581
---------- Rupees in '000--------
13,209,424 10,674,994
Number.

1,185,060,006

1,185,060,006

9.01
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35.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of traded investments is based on quoted market prices, except for tradable securities classified by the Bank as 'held to
maturity'. Quoted securities classified as held to maturity are carried at amortised cost. Fair value of unquoted equity investments other
than investments in associates and subsidiaries is determined on the basis of break up value of these investments as per the latest
available financial statements.

Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient
reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar
instruments.

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are not significantly different from their
carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short-term in nature or re-priced over short term.

Fair value of financial assets

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs).

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair valuation of financial instruments within level 2

Item Valuation approach and input used
Federal Government The fair values of Federal Government securities are determined using the PKRV rates.
securities

Term Finance and Bonds | Investments in debt securities (comprising term finance certificates, bonds and any other security issued
by a company or a body corporate for the purpose of raising funds in the form of redeemable capital) are
valued on the basis of the rates announced by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in
accordance with the methodology prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Foreign exchange The valuation has been determined by interpolating the mid rates announced by the State Bank of
contracts Pakistan.
Derivatives The fair values of derivatives which are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation

techniques. The valuation techniques take into account the relevant underlying parameters including
foreign currency involved, interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, contracts duration etc.

Operating fixed assets Land and buildings are revalued every three years using professional valuers on the panel of Pakistan
(land and building) & NBA [ Banker's Association. The valuation is based on their assessment of market value of the properties.

The Bank's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer occurred. There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the period.

(a) Financial instruments in level 1
Financial instruments included in level 1 comprise of investments in listed ordinary shares and units of mutual funds.

(b) Financial instruments in level 2

Financial instruments included in level 2 comprise of Sukuk Bonds, Pakistan Investment Bonds, Market Treasury Bills, Term Finance
certificates, FX options, Cross Currency Swaps, Interest Rate Swaps and Forward Exchange Contracts.

(c) Financial instruments in level 3
Currently, no financial instruments are classified in level 3.
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) . ) . . . . ) A 36  SEGMENT INFORMATION
The table below analyses the financial and non-financial assets carried at fair values, by valuation methods. For financial assets, the Bank o . o
) T . . " . . A . ) . A . 36.1 Segment details with respect to business activities
essentially carries its investments in debt and equity securities at fair values. Valuation of investments is carried out as per guidelines specified "  analvsis with 16 busi ity s as ol
£ . . . A e segment analysis with respect to business activity Is as follows:
by the SBP. In case of non-financial assets, the Bank has adopted revaluation model (as per IAS 16) in respect of land and building. Unaudited half year ended June 30, 2020
Unaudited June 30, 2020 Retail Banking | cg;‘:;‘i:‘ger | | Cé’ﬁ'ﬁ;’:;e | Treasury I '”ﬁ;’:‘i'i:’g”a‘ others | | Sub-total | | Eliminations | Total |
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Rupees in 000
] - S
On balance sheet financial instruments Rupeesin '000 Profit & Loss
Financial assets - measured at fair value Net mark-up/return/profit (27,559,261) 1,413,318 17,388,362 44,012,291 758,146 - 36,012,856 - 36,012,856
Inter segment revenue - net 51,405,696 (341,750) (14,511,898) (40,745,318) (40,431) 4,233,701 - - -
Investments Non mark-up / return / interest income 3,001,626 839,091 1,560,124 1,081,216 389,622 211,093 7,082,772 - 7,082,772
Federal Government Securities 868,036,430 - 868,036,430 - 868,036,430 Total Income 26,848,061 7,910,659 4,436,588 4,348,189 1,107,337 4,444,794 43,095,628 B 43,095,628
Shares 14,629,376 14,629,376 - - 14,629,376 Segment direct expenses 10,709,498 734,317 291,724 205,675 658,988 4,277,569 16,877,771 - 16,877,771
Non-Government Debt Securities 1,886,722 1,886,722 - 1,886,722 Inter segment expense allocation - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Securities 4,489,450 _ 4,489,450 _ 4,489,450 Total expenses 10,709,498 734317 291,724 205,675 658,988 4277,569 16,877,771 B 16,877,771
Provisions 60,375 80,643 132,357 116,820 69,204 3,504,008 3,963,497 - 3,963,497
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value Profit before tax 16,078,188 7,095,699 7,012,507 7,025,604 379,055 (3.336,783) 22,254,360 B 22,254,360
Investments (HTM, AFS, unlisted ordinary
T . Bal: Sheet Un audited half year ended June 30, 2020
shares, subsidiaries and associates) 39,665,617 = - - - Cash & Bank balances 55,106,044 75,171 1,163,300 79,420,765 y22,227,261 775410 158,868,851 - 158,868,851
Cash and balances with treasury banks 144,167,677 - - - - Investments - - 11,266,166 900,921,593 16,519,836 - 928,707,595 - 928,707,595
) Net inter segment lending 1,033,055,215 - - - 199430952  1232,486,167  (1,232,486,167) -
Balances with other banks 14,701,174 - - - - Lendings to financial insiitutions - - - - 2,086,775 - 2,086,775 - 2,056,775
Lendings to financial institutions 2,056,775 - - - - Advances - performing 92,298,606 23,238,258 313,764,259 s 22,782,182 o 452,083,305 o 452,083,305
Advances 460,611,078 - - - - - non performing 663,280 395,774 1,511,143 - 5,235,685 721,891 8,527,773 - 8,527,773
Others 34,794,268 2,053,790 23,483,940 17,717,230 2,104,716 37,205,862 117,359,806 - 117,359,806
Other assets 51,626,803 : : : : Total Assets 1,215,918,313 25862993 351,188,808 998,059,588 70,926,455 238,134,115 2,900,090,272  (1,232,486,167) 1,667,604,105
Non - Financial Assets measured at fair value
Borrowings 49,997,305 - 7,619,601 52,518,360 3,004,314 - 113,229,580 - 113,229,580
Operating fixed assets (land and buildings) 43,377,704 = 43,377,704 = 43,377,704 Deposits & other accounts 1,147,409,495 18,397,080 58,278,271 5 50,587,067 10,265  1,274,682,178 - 1,274,682,178
Non-banking assets 3,822,554 - 3,822,554 - 3,822,554 Net inter segment borrowing 5 5132607 269,645,221 943,948,218 13,760,121 o 1,232,486,167  (1,232,486,167) a
o . Others 18,511,513 2,333,306 15,645,715 1,593,010 3,484,953 53,238,310 94,806,807 - 94,806,807
Off-halance sheet financial instruments - measured at fair value Total liabilities 7.215,918,313 75,862,005 351,188,808 998,059,568 70,926,455 53248575 2715204732 (1,232,486,167) 1482,716,565
Forward purchase of foreign exchange Lol ; AP - AP fqr\tlyE ity & liabiliti 1,215,918 3-13 25,862 9-93 351,188, e;os 998,059, 5;88 70,926 1;55 ;::?zjl?:: 2 ;izzzz::s (1,232,486, 1 67) 1 ;::2??:2
Forward sale of foreign exchange 71,340,612 - 2,318,190 - 2,318,190 ot maulty & febiies == = = = B = = B B
Contingencies & Commitments 58,187,888 - 247,077,504 __ 201,916,906 10,260,493 32,201,883 549,734,674 - 549,734,674
Derivatives purchase 3,788,301 - 1,186,368 - 1,186,368
Derivatives sale 3,627,137 - 1,182,033 - 1,182,033 Unaudited half year ended June 30, 2019
. N Consumer Corporate International o
Audited December 31’ 2019 | Retail Banking | | banking | | Banking | | Treasury | Banking others | | Sub-total | | Eliminations | | Total |
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Profita L Rupees in '000
rofit oss
On bal heet fi ial inst " Rupeesin '000 Net mark-up/return/profit (19,538,108) 1,856,388 16,247,861 28,416,955 816,664 - 27,799,760 - 27,799,760
n balance sheet financial instruments Inter segment revenue - net 40,337,346 (1127,219)  (14,068,644)  (29,962,383) 11,857 4,809,043 - - -
Financial assets - measured at fair value Non mark-up / return / interest income 3,078,903 965,557 1,819,643 1,399,508 404,110 291,623 7,959,344 - 7,959,344
Total Income 23,878,141 1,694,726 3,998,860 (145,920) 1,232,631 5,100,666 35,759,104 - 35,759,104
Investments
Federal Government Securities 680,585,359 - 680,585,359 - 680,585,359 Segment direct expenses 11,005,975 677,706 302,159 166,930 645,206 3,952,889 16,750,865 - 16,750,865
Shares 14,912,747 14,912,747 ; . 14,912,747 r tterlsegmem grperse locsen 11,005, 9-75 677 7-06 302 1 59 166, s;so 645 z-os 3,952 s-as 16,750, e;es - 16,750, 8-65
e otal expenses A B , ) B R B i 3 i - i i
Non-Government Debt Securities 1,306,414 1,306,414 - 1,306,414 Provisions (78,764) (27,876) (472,029) 1,600,028 34,364 (296,059) 759,664 - 759,664
Foreign Securities 3,663,065 - 3,663,065 - 3,663,065 Profit before tax 12,950,930 1,044,896 4,168,730 (1,912,878) 553,061 1,443,836 18,248,575 - 18,248,575
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured Balance Sheet Audited December 31, 2019
at fair value Cash & Bank balances 50,154,942 21,483 676,139 65,572,277 28,149,362 672,833 145,247,036 - 145,247,036
Investments (HTM, AFS, unlisted ordinary Investments - - 10,638,292 723,114,519 15,011,691 - 748,764,502 - 748,764,502
shares, subsidiaries and associates) 48,296,917 - - - - Net inter segment lending 940,015,024 - - - 164,202,627 1,104,307,651  (1,104,307,651) -
: : : - pre e o T amD L gmm e e
Balances with other banks 12,542,239 - - - - - non performing 1.074.787 13148 1237.494 - 4,836,865 227,544 7489838 - 749,838
Lendings to financial institutions 1,090,058 - - - - Others 34,759,963 1882259 25393004 13,804,786 2368790 _ 45162743 _ 123,371.545 - 123,371,545
Advances 496,678,874 - - - - Total Assets 1,124,468,770 26,359,646 379,136,216 803,372,435 75,766,852 210,355,747 2,619,459,666  (1,104,307,651)  1,515,152,015
Other assets 52,808,501 - - - -
Borrowings 45,355,965 - 7,057,504 33,572,200 3,520,223 - 89,505,892 - 89,505,892
Non - Financial Assets measured at fair value Deposits & other accounts 1,033,804,761 - 55,425,048 - 55,523,627 9,823 1,144,763,259 - 1,144,763,259
o o Net inter segment borrowing - 24124908 299,650,838 768,067,183 12,464,722 - 1,104,307,651  (1,104,307,651) -
Operating fixed assets (land and buildings) 43,552,234 - 43,552,234 - 43,552,234 Others 45,308,044 2,234,738 17,002,826 1,733,052 4,258,280 41,431,141 111,968,081 - 111,968,081
Non-banking assets 3,838,230 - 3,838,230 - 3,838,230 Total liabilities 1,124,468,770 26,359,646 379,136,216 803,372,435 75,766,852 41440964  2450,544,883  (1,104,307,651)  1,346,237,232
. - Equity - - - - - 168,914,783 168,914,783 - 168,914,783
gf;;‘i’ral\?ar:ﬁz sheet financial instruments - measured Total Equity & liabilities 1,124,468,770 26,359,646 __ 379,136,216 __ 803,372,435 75,766,852 210,355,747 _2,619,459,666_ _(1,104,307,651) _1,515,152,015
Forward purchase of foreign exchange 217,809,539 - 4,146,908 - 4,146,908 Contingencies & Commitments 48,973 361 . 262,455,602 496,556,621 14,015,586 29,145,510 851,146,770 - 851,146,770
Forward sale of foreign exchan 187,805,779 - 3,379,897 - 3,379,897
ard sale oreign exchange ! ! ! ! ! T 36.2 Transactions between reportable segments are based on an appropriate transfer pricing mechanism using agreed rates. Furthermore, segment assets and liabilities include inter segment
Derivatives purchase 5.176,612 _ 1,232,827 _ 1,232,827 balances. Costs which are not allocated to segments are included in the Head office. Income taxes are managed at bank level and are not allocated to operating segments.
30 Derivatives sale 5,068,194 - 1,229,116 - 1,229,116 31
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MCB Bank Limited -v-
Notes To The Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) MCB
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
39 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
In compliance with the SBP's instructions as disclosed in note 6.6 to the unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements, the Board
of Directors, in its meeting held on August 20, 2020 has not declared any cash dividend in respect of the quarter ended June 30, 2020 (June
30,2019: Rs 4 per share). Therefore, there is no non-adjusting event after the balance sheet date.
40 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise stated.
41 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Bank in their
meeting held on August 20, 2020.

Imran Magbool Hammad Khalid Mian Umer Mansha Muhammad Ali Zeb Salman Khalid Butt
President / CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director

MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies
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(Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements for the half year ended June 30, 2020)
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MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies

Consolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2020

Note Unaudited
June 30, 2020

v
Y
MCB

Bank for Life

Audited
December 31, 2019

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 7 154,458,276 142,957,358
Balances with other banks 8 16,558,773 21,371,753
Lendings to financial institutions 9 3,185,565 6,060,869
Investments 10 945,689,659 757,441,590
Advances 11 530,556,220 548,472,860
Fixed assets 12 63,290,907 64,201,807
Intangible assets 13 1,847,525 1,978,975
Deferred tax assets - -
Other assets 14 65,470,291 69,729,659
1,781,057,216 1,612,214,871
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 16 12,612,897 12,795,325
Borrowings 17 117,072,656 92,859,968
Deposits and other accounts 18 1,371,348,008 1,226,593,025
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - -
Subordinated debt - -
Deferred tax liabilities 19 12,081,916 6,214,223
Other liabilities 20 80,697,557 102,405,513
1,593,813,034 1,440,868,054
NET ASSETS 187,244,182 171,346,817
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 11,850,600 11,850,600
Reserves 21 80,065,109 77,894,829
Surplus on revaluation of assets 22 39,914,617 24,752,206
Unappropriated profit 54,660,021 56,108,779
186,490,347 170,606,414
Non-controlling interest 753,835 740,403
187,244,182 171,346,817

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

T PR

Hammad Khalid Mian Umer Mansha Muhammad Ali Zeb
Chief Financial Officer Director Director

Imran Magbool
President / CEO

Qo bt

Salman Khalid Butt
Director

MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies -v-
Consolidated Condensed Interim Profit & Loss Account (Un-audited) —
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
Quarter ended Half Year Quarter ended Half Year
Note June 30, 2020 ended June 30, June 30, 2019 ended June 30,
2020 2019
- RUpEES N '000----- -
Mark-up / return / interest earned 25 38,752,021 80,408,589 34,082,170 63,418,278
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 26 17,784,988 42,155,774 18,841,312 33,838,728
Net mark-up / interest income 20,967,033 38,252,815 15,240,858 29,579,550
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
Fee and commission income 27 2,532,588 5,658,116 3,005,247 6,069,062
Dividend income 215,236 415,562 452,264 654,605
Foreign exchange income 698,671 1,533,230 1,324,715 1,786,380
Income/ (loss) from derivatives 3,502 (6,903) (19,666) (3,936)
Loss on securities 28 (51,410) (57,664) (192,310) (177,682)
Other Income 29 60,513 84,159 24,305 57,003
Total non-markup / interest Income 3,459,100 7,626,500 4,594,555 8,385,432
Total Income 24,426,133 45,879,315 19,835,413 37,964,982
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
Operating expenses 30 9,292,038 18,683,734 9,348,238 18,809,457
Workers welfare fund 227,788 445,087 182,703 365,700
Other charges 31 30,867 240,180 60,608 106,880
Total non-markup / interest expenses 9,550,693 19,369,001 9,591,549 19,282,037
Share of profit of associates 151,910 412,806 42,364 199,907
Profit before provisions 15,027,350 26,923,120 10,286,228 18,882,852
Provisions / (reversals) and write offs - net 32 3,296,366 4,076,022 1,355,669 907,499
Extra ordinary / unusual items - - - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11,730,984 22,847,098 8,930,559 17,975,353
Taxation 33 4,867,333 9,373,265 3,519,156 7,553,728
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 6,863,651 13,473,833 5,411,403 10,421,625
(Profit) / loss attributable to non-controlling interest (62,187) (48,455) 23,271 (818)
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BANK 6,801,464 13,425,378 5,434,674 10,420,807
Rupees
Basic and diluted earnings per share 34 5.74 11.33 4.59 8.79

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

gt B

(e g

Hammad Khalid Mian Umer Mansha Muhammad Ali Zeb
Chief Financial Officer Director Director

Imran Magbool
President / CEO

Salman Khalid Butt

Director

39




Bank for Life

“SJUBWaJelS [erouey
10BN WUB)U] Pasu
PasUapuoo pajep|osuod asay) o Jed feba)
Ml U Wi} Z O
) | S3)0U paxaLue
AL

“SJUBLIJEIS [E1oUU]
JoUeU Lialu Pasl
/3pUCD PAIEPI0SU00 8S8U) 0] |7 3J0u Jo
jl 9sea|d ‘Sanase)
10 SEjap 104

SuaWales [elve
10UBU WG PaSUaY
PUD PajEPIosUod
358y} 0} (f 91ou Jajel asea|d ‘suoneudosddt
e pue Uofesea|
D PUBPIND O Sfe
19p 104

41

—
&
VP18, Ge8¢l  LVE06r 98l
(ev0'se) - Troe 000 peoce00r
£90'Ge) e A T —
v ——
(009'058'}1) 92LL6) ——
(0091068’ 8l _—
i) = 90 —
eszs) R ) (o0slose'ly) ITI0EE T9969¢ P
(00g526'9) A7) 1% —
(o085255) e owomn
= £
S 0207 06 8unt ese & @
= 6E5'sY —_— oueleg
= e 1 Buozpoo-oN 0} o =
B 5'5h) QeI PUBPAP 0 BleyS 52
= , , =3
= 200'88.'12 o (22608 0207 "1 UoselN - 21eys 1ad (G A
> vy o 6402 s 120 0 sy 18 o
= , e s i g a3 PP B £
=) SCRRLVEL  GGver T ( s i emros st oo =
8IS i Sov'st) . B 0EE' 031 SI3UO Yy su @
= ) S ettt et - s
>, o 7S o Uogenerd) wo sndin ~oud pajeudosdde
B mew oo . i sy s o 5
d 3l
= e ) SO DO S e sl
m. (1ee'29) L% 6600 e Py S——
(08°08%'6) e e
= (i JeToey 0000098 Xe}jo
087087 0000098 pel" [ Jou-
o) cwwmww wv (08'085'6) veresdle  ySeeLT T U e 0 Esosw__w“““_o - d M
» (0rz0vL't) 0 0P ) R N 113 R 4202 05 aun ) UOjere) 942 ol =
5} (0rzorL) el 009058’ 1 popua poad 1 10} auo Is
mb - _009058'1) Ul aAIsuayaidwod [ejo) .m m
17, (9]
6102 €
.nlu _.M e - 102 ‘1€ 19quadag Je se aoueleg € .m
n C e J IJUOO-UON 0} BqEINGUE PUSPIAI JO JeYS WUa
< = oz o, 602" =
(=9 S 022) mw hw%amm ~atets Jad ' Sy 1 pu
‘0g unf - IopIA|
m ~— (e81 086" r smﬁa3.wm_z%usgmsgﬁ__,
= 8108€')) Rymbou & PP USEO L3l
=) Loy Joaup papiooai . :
@) = 0] 187798 , HOUNO N SUOROESUEL
= ; 605 SIz 0L , 1oy sosse e
vovsL 65 ELEs SO0z ) ) Unec-uou 0 esods
) D ULeL Py 97707 L S0 616'99¢" SBIOEE') o pamea ring .A 2
z 2 ') 4 A : 6968 I Xe} 0 jou - oud pa) 2
= m ? T , Renjens) Uo snidins oy uopepaid: pajeudoiddeun o) sjosse pa &
o > : aﬂhﬁ. T o el 80 =5
" 65+ '958] el e
- m m 00w 16560 - ansasal A10) m m
2 _—s . L6560 ElvTiel  6re L WJes 0] ojsuel. 5a
w 5 Q) A BENESS 8096 5
N arosrs) S9wen v 64024 Xeljo1au - s
s 091 N P— £ 19qua08 atoou ans
N L (ozonrs) AT (0810616 lewoy) 000w G112 Jsquisn  PopU pouad SO XS 84} o uagedwoo ey
=% o CATK] 0000981 _6v625E0E q papua pouiad syjuow xis - } UONEXe Jalje Jjold
3 2 e (0o o0  egeme U6 10 ez onsua
L) i | isuaeduos
= = ge6 w0l 02 ' Jequiaaag e
= nﬁ_w = _0EI6ET 0090881 pua potiad syjuow s 1oy Aynba uj oBue
S 2 inbo ut ey _
- €990 | 8
o= M < (e9501) 640 0¢ unr 2 52 S0UEEeg o
m = £l s
= M = (e2022) 2 oi-ame B0 S : m M
) 807" Y 1B puspin ‘S
- @] M xogmé e (667'290'1) Mz )£ oaue0sq-amp 2y mmiwaﬁsgé, > m g
5 o PP Use T
= = Va...V Sz9'lzrol MN %ww,wm_e £19'988'6 Aynbau Ajyoaup papiodas ‘siaumo " m_.m
= 8= 8 1080250} Trer ] (690'%2) ) X210 9U - 195 PO i sogoesiEil T
< = ® 1080250 69750 ME,: 661190 4 ponferd o esodsp o pasea snd 5
) —. Il
B .Im = 61872¢'15) 28" - e '619' ! w ¥e) jo1au - oud pajeud s °
_— oot 1219190 . 180619 Vena, o sniduns wo uojedeid feudoiddeun o} sjesse pax|
m‘u S 2 5l 60169 - TE06L9T p Fomakorn M.a;
67 o -
= = (44 (6197481 anasal o
287 eis 0} Jojsuel »
I~ 000009 *
> o8 # | syonon e UL o a oo
womoovoy || S wod .ssumxx:g - 000, soey 8109 556 ciéuggEgms.agx_msi%imassgo
I " [ (s 8\
pepepdoiddeun = o sueusan UL 0090sE 610215 2 papua poyad 41 oy 2 1103 LOREE 4 0 50
N Wwoau!
10 Uonenjerdsuo (joyep)snd auesal [eloUo9 | anjsuayaidwoa [ejo) 88
oysp)sniding L anesal a\Jasel UojeISues} o 9107 1€ Joquiaoa W/
T fonjeg . o501 eyden Qe Se aoueleg SE
(qEINQuISIp -UoN wnweid aleyg p T}
ENCINE G [eyded aleys Ca
3 .m %
mls 3
d 3 2 0
o c o N
= w N | e IXNIZ 8 =
S b N — =
M £ 8 s | ¢ LN RS g lo| [
- bR = = R v 33 |c
S 3 P e e - slg ¢ o S 8
> ! - g <€ N << © © 3 =
H <|<= < sls 1S . ©|©
H ~{— re] its) (=3 © o
T o H = ™ o 2
5} i > ik
-~ H ™ o - 3¢l
fam T H =] = S p
= s 1 ~ o o< — A -
L o i = SQF B —~
~— D ® H hy © 3 38 QR = |5 p—
= 2o 4 < e e 28 > =~
® S w I = 8 8 |8 S| 2
= S S oS o) S [ %) . S} oo Q 2
g3 2 - > el g |3 212 |8 g 2lg @
< c - ~(N 3 <l | S J|& 2
| £ <= = |9 oY PSS P & YN 235
= ° @ ~ [to) e Kk S QIS <%
U ol =] [} % N 0 z o
o N (7] (%] < - [sp] =
— c o a < < j=4a)
o N S = o o — £
5 s Z © 228 g — E
2 83 | = 2R3 8 (|58 8 = A
> o H 5 ol ~ NG S 5 © =]
=3 = i 2} © N ANE ~ 2] 2)
o = 5 H - © & S| <N 38 18
T 3 H e < © & —|= (= [Tl
= £ i 3 ~ = |2 32138
H <[ < < o} o =
b ; D I Q8 |g] Y <|S
5 H = © N~ ® 52 o
T o ! - — = E ~ < (o0
2 88 | B A= A= I =S
o i -
@z S i © < — NN @
= s 5 H~ I YR @ 1 = 8
5 53 i © () g 3 ~|[r~ — [} ' N
= £ . s |5 g sy 5 |8 [Elg 5 :
T 2 i © o <X o 01 ) 2] %) o) g
L 8 c H I o - el = ™ <
s S ! < ~| 2 N~ =) -8
€] =} [=} el |18 N — 5] o
= o < o ™ -2 (e
= ~|+= e} oo el e} 1
» oL B 3 RE gl =28 = 28
3 =] N g R R b sael 8 EDQ
o ~ ™~ [© R3S 5] ©
(=] == i o] o c <
= S [® Sl 2 S
g O || ~ ol £ 3
2 5 g £
E = 2 i s
~
H ) ° €
[=] = a Q2 ° £
o g : 8 5 3
= 2 ° x s m ./ﬁ ©
> o g 2 S £ S 2
R » 2 ‘s S B 5
5 8 oz S s 5 25
o S 2 @ @ o 2
wn » c c ] 55
o= S £ o ' E 8 el
@ gg 8 2 2 % © S8
o o—_ < < c e 8 k=] 5
= N W 5] [} = e = S
= D 0 S & £ . € S 2 =
S - M o 173 o S @ c
=N Qa o 2 c g < 8
— O 2 c T z S 8 ; o
3 g5 £ 3 s % g 5 op 3
P59 = ° = @ ° 3 @ 5 2
= 2= 2 8 @ c S o = =
D = s £ s 2 3 ° S B g
s 2= 3 g 5 3 c 5 3 £ 2
=T k= = @ (S 5 s ©° ] =8
m = @ s £ s > = E = o 2=
= o ) ) =3 x @ 2 = 5 = = ® o]
ot s~ g 2 8 c S = S x £ 2 [ ©'Q
- OF ¢ § B 8 8 < £ 32 S 3 g 25
< = 2 W c © c S5 2% 2 o Qo ES
VR - 5 £ 2 2 £ § T o 3 2 T 3 £ Ei
= > w o 4 n_n.v Z e © c @ 5 O = m < < T's
= S = c 2 ° - s 3 @ © £ 5 < H = 2 5 © c
== § ¢ & ¢ °cg £ =% 55 2% S 2 E N
p BT g 2 3 e $E o S e o% 3 < g 2 g
o= X 9 g £ so s =2 8 5 % @ O £ s . ~
M =) ) - = - 2 e ¢ > o 2 o T 173 o IS <
= = o © 7] S = c [ L5 FER: 3 °
(@) = & £ £ c o= S 3 < g S ] 2 ° 5 o
= & = © T © Ny [ ) c c - [ o = ha
M S5 £ g B g §E S £ & a5 e E S s £ %
o =] & o s ‘s >3 s = £ £ o = Q g 4 2 > 4
=~ £ 5 oz 3 3 S 5 8 2 z £ 55 5 & §< s
5 £ E 2 25 ° £ Z g8 Z g 5 © 58 € 3
& 6 £ O S 4 £ £8 % 3 o 8 S0
2 5 w =z 5 o 2 ] ) € B Gt¢ 3 oy
[ g 2z 4 o 2 = 2 5 & 3 & X A
7] w O o g
»n = o ® 5 29 o 5]
' = £ £ = 2 £ I = €
a O 8 = 325 c S c
= § £ d S © S
F < z @ S
C 2 gL
[= =o

40




MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies i’“- MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies i’“-
MCEB MCEB
Consolidated Condensed Interim Cash Flow Statement (Un-audited) — Notes To The Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) ———
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
Note  Half Year ended Half Year ended 1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 . .
__________ RUPees in ‘00— The Group consists of:
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES - Holding Company - MCB Bank Limited
Profit before taxation 22,847,098 17,975,353 "Percentage holding of
Less: Dividend income and share of profit of associates (828,368) (854,512) Subsidiary Companies MCB Bank Limited"
22,018,730 17,120,841
Adjustments: . . . . 5
Depreciation on fixed assets 30 1,190,148 7,081,871 - MCB Financial Services Limited . L0z
- . - MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited 51.33%
Depreciation on right of use assets 30 820,537 791,166 . NS ) N o
Depreciation on non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 30 15,675 24,124 - MCB Non-Bank Credit Organization " Closed Joint Stock Company 99.94%
Amortization 30 227,611 188,591 - MCB Islamic Bank Limited 100%
Provisions / (reversals) and write offs - net 32 4,076,022 907,499 - Financial Management Services (Private) Limited 95.90%
Workers welfare fund 445,087 365,700
Gain on sale of fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired-net 29 (18,982) (36,625) MCB Bank Limited (the 'Bank’) is a banking company incorporated in Pakistan and is engaged in commercial banking and related
Charge / (reversal) for defined benefit plans 161,546 (32,175) services. The Bank's ordinary shares are listed on the Pakistan stock exchange. The Bank's Registered Office and Principal Office are
Interest expensed on lease liability against right-of-use assets 804,608 467,237 situated at MCB -15 Main Gulberg, Lahore. The Bank operates 1,400 branches (2019: 1,399 branches) within Pakistan and 11
Unrealized (gain)/loss on revaluation of investments classified as held for trading 28 (62,676) 82,646 branches (2019: 11 branches) outside Pakistan (including the Karachi Export Processing Zone branch).
7,659,576 3,840,034 : - ) . . . L
29.678.306 20.960.875 1.1 The board of directors of_the Bank has approved the winding up of Financial & Management Services ( Private) Limited. The Bank
Decrease / (increase) in operati " holds 95.90% shareholding of the Company.
perating assets
h?g?gi:z;;:ggzst:r?ﬁsgu“ons (222222‘1‘) 3;?222% 12 ;'Egizrlléri]soig;?sea%rg;evs;sof disposal of its wholly owned subsidiary “MCB Financial Services Limited” subject to all regulatory
Advances 14,022,050 (6,791,304) ’
Others assets (excluding advance taxation) 1,419,719 (16,375,035) 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
) A [t 11,986,267 21 These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of MCB Bank Limited and its subsidiary companies.
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills Payable (182,428) (5,398,546) a. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies accompanying a
Borrowings from financial institutions 24,923,181 (34,949,534) shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
Deposits 144,754,983 109,508,865 are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation) (25,423,332) 11,290,900 control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date when control ceases. The assets and liabilities of subsidiary
144,072,404 80,451,685 companies have been consolidated on a line by line basis based in the financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2020
Defined benefits paid (165,300) (166,874) and th_e carrying value qf in_vesltment_s held by the parent i_s eliminated against the subsidia_aries' shareholde_rs'_ equity in these
Income tax paid (7,177,096) (378,874) consolidated condensed interim financial statements. Material intra-Group balances and transactions have been eliminated.
Net cash flow from operaling activiies etz Rl b. Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Investments in associates are accounted for
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES under the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost, thereafter adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the
Net investments in available-for-sale securities (166,762,830) (55,492,926) Group's share of net assets of the associates. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted in the carrying amount of the
Net investments in held-to-maturity securities 8,677,322 (882,746) investment. Accounting policies of the associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
Dividends received 492,898 728,817 adopted by the Group. The Group's share in associates have been accounted for based on the financial statements for the half year
Investments in fixed assets (963,909) (3,069,841) ended June 30, 2020.
Investments in Intangible assets (86,772) (257,037)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 31,257 88,240 €. Non-controlling interest is that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of subsidiary companies attributable to interests
Proceeds from sale of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 8 40,000 which are notowned by the Group.
Investments in non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - (64,445)
Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches 839,308 1,661,349 22 In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking system to Islamic modes, the State
o ) o Bank of Pakistan has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade-related modes of financing include
Net cash flow used in investing activities (157,772,726) (57.248,589) purchase of goods by banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at appropriate profit in price on deferred payment
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these consolidated condensed interim financial
Payments of subordinated debt - (3,891,019) statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilized and the appropriate portion of profit thereon.
Payment of lease liability against right-of-use-assets (1,129,551) (909,239)
Dividend paid (11,741,428) (9,394,092) The financial results of the Group's Islamic Banking business have been consolidated in these financial statements for reporting
Net cash flow used in financing activities (12,870,979) (14,194,350) purposes, after eliminating material inter-group transactions / balances. Key financial figures of the Islamic Banking business are
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3.766,686 4,750,546 disclosed in note 39 to these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,165,117 46,160,686 2.3 The consolidated condensed interim financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group's functional and
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 159,219,822 116,806,471 presentation currency. The amounts are rounded off to the nearest thousand.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 170,384,939 162,967,157 . i o . . X X
24 These consolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that
The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements. certain classes of fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are stated at revalued amounts and certain
investments and derivative financial instruments have been marked to market and are carried at fair value. In addition, obligations in
M respect of staff retirement benefits are carried at present value.
e 8 Vit Qb
Imran Magbool Hammad Khalid Mian Umer Mansha Muhammad Ali Zeb Salman Khalid Butt
42 President / CEO Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director 43
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified
under the CompaniesAct, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the SBP
and the SECP differ with the requirements of IAS 34 or IFAS, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
CompaniesAct, 2017 and the said directives, shall prevail.

The State Bank of Pakistan has deferred the applicability of International Financial Reporting Standard 9, 'Financial Instruments'
through BPRD Circular No. 04 of 2019 dated October 23, 2019 and International Accounting Standards 40, 'Investment Property' for
Banking Companies through BSD Circular No. 10 dated August 26, 2002. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) has deferred applicability of IFRS-7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" on banks through S.R.0 411(1)/2008 dated April 28,
2008. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these consolidated condensed
interim financial statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed
by the State Bank of Pakistan through various circulars.

The SECP vide its notification SRO 633 (1)/2014 dated 10 July 2014, adopted IFRS 10 effective from the periods starting from June 30,
2014. However, vide its notification SRO 56 (1)/2016 dated January 28, 2016, it has been notified that the requirements of IFRS 10 and
section 228 of the Companies Act, 2017 will not be applicable with respect to the investment in mutual funds established under trust
structure.

The disclosures made in these consolidated condensed interim financial statements have been limited based on a format prescribed
by the SBP vide BPRD Circular Letter No. 05 of 2019 dated March 22, 2019 and IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting. These
unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in the audited
annual financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the audited annual consolidated financial statements for the
financial yearended December31,2019.

Amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective in the current period

There are certain new standards and interpretations of and amendments to existing accounting standards that have become
applicable to the Bank for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. These are considered either to not be relevant or
not to have any significantimpact on the Group's consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following new standards and amendments to existing accounting standards will be effective from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standard oramendment:

Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)

January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2021

The SECP, through SRO 229(1)/2019 dated February 14, 2019, has notified that IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, is applicable for
accounting periods ending on or after June 30, 2019. However, as per BPRD Circular No. 04 of 2019 dated October 23, 2019 of SBP,
effective date of IFRS 9 implementation is January 01, 2021.

IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments)

IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment ( Amendments)

IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets ( Amendments)
IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement, addresses recognition, classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The standard has also introduced a new impairment model for financial assets
which requires recognition of impairment charge based on an 'expected credit losses' (ECL) approach rather than the 'incurred credit
losses' approach as currently followed. The ECL approach has animpact on all assets of the Bank which are exposed to credit risk. The
Bank s in the process of assessing the fullimpact of this standard.
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There are other new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2021 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Group's operations and are
therefore not detailed in these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies and methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these consolidated condensed interim
financial statements are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2019.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The basis for accounting estimates adopted in the preparation of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements are the
same as that applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 except as
explainedinnote 6.1.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Group are consistent with those disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019. These risk management policies continue to remain robust and the Group
is reviewing its portfolio regularly and conducts rapid portfolio reviews in line with emerging risks.

The COVID - 19 pandemic has taken a toll on all economies and emerged as a contagion risk around the globe, including Pakistan. To
reduce the impact on businesses and economies in general, regulators / governments across the globe have introduced a host of
measures on both the fiscal and economic fronts.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has also responded to the crisis by cutting the Policy Rate by 625 basis points during the period to
7% in June 2020. Other regulatory measures to provide an impetus to economic activity include the following:

—Reduction in the capital conservation buffer by 100 basis points to 1.5%;

—Increasing the regulatory limit on extension of credit to SMEs to Rs 180 million;

—Relaxing the debt burden ratio for consumer loans from 50% to 60%;

— Allowing banks to defer borrowers’ principal loan payments by one year and or restructure / reschedule loans for borrowers who
require relief of principal repayment exceeding one year and/ or mark-up with no reflection on credit history; and

—Introduction of refinancing schemes for payment of wages and salaries.

COVID 19 has impacted the banks in Pakistan from various facets which include muted credit risk increase, reduced fee income due to
slowdown in economic activity, branch closures and cyber security threat management.

Credit Risk Management

The Risk Management function of the Group is regularly conducting assessments of the credit portfolio to identify borrowers most likely
to get affected due to changes in the business and economic environment. The Group has further strengthened its risk appetite and
related credit review procedures in the light of COVID-19, which would insulate the Group from any unforeseen shock .

As the full potential effect of the economic stress posed by the COVID-19 outbreak is difficult to predict, the management has exercised
prudence and booked General Provision of Rs 4 billion during the half year ended June 30, 2020.

Liquidity Risk Management

In view of the relaxation granted by SBP for deferral of principal and markup and rescheduling of loans there will be an impact on the
maturity profile of the Group. The Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Group is continuously monitoring the liquidity position
and the Group is confident that the liquidity buffer currently maintained is sufficient to address any requirement, as reflected by the
cushion in liquidity ratios above the statutory requirement.

Equity Risk Management

During the first six months the Pakistan Stock Exchange fell by 15.5%, triggering an impairment of Rs 1,931.930 million. The Group
has recorded an impairment of Rs 1,346.097 million resulting from the valuation of listed equity securities held as Available for Sale in
the first half and has deferred the recognition of the remaining impairment to the remainder part of the calendar year 2020 and has been
taken to deficit on revaluation of investments as allowed by the State Bank of Pakistan under the Para (viii) of BPRD Circular Letter No.
13 0f 2020 dated March 26, 2020.

Operational Risk Management

The Group is closely monitoring the situation and has invoked required actions to ensure the safety and security of Group staff while
ensuring uninterrupted service to customers. The senior management of the Group is continuously monitoring the situation and is
taking timely decisions to resolve any concerns.
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Business Continuity Plans (BCP) for respective areas are in place and duly tested. The Group has significantly enhanced monitoring of o - ol [ v o wvlo 0 ~ ola o |o - . © oy 85 o I Ol )
cyber security risk during these times. The remote work capabilities were enabled for staff, where required and related risk and control § Ny 3 & |82 EHI] (8 28|18 cLS 3’1 - P E 8 &S 8 & & & 38 |5
measures were assessed to ensure that the Group’s assets are protected from emerging cyber threats and comply with the regulatory > L3S [ecIR5 |18 3=l gly 282 |8 g8 g 59|18 g
protocols. The Group is communicating with its customers for their financial transactions to be conducted through digital channel % P b= DSENCIDN D] IS p S NGB NS 2 5EQ 8« @l phe = s =
offerings. The Group has taken all measures to ensure that service levels are maintained, customer complaints are resolved and s - 8 - IS = @ 2 8 2 N N ~
turnaround times are monitored to meet customer requirements and expectations. o a -
— — o] =1
- < v o D ™ %) [} ~
6.5 Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) 2| 3= § 3 §_ § 5 E A ﬁ{ B § :3:" ] E S E_ g g g §>_ g E’_
In order to encourage Group to continue lending, the SBP has relaxed the Capital Conversion Buffer (CCB) requirements to 1.5%, Sl 2 T3R8 |TE T8 3l 3 g P8 3|8 T2 18 g8 |8
resultingin a 1% decline in CAR requirements for all Tiers. sl g < — © © 2% | © o]l — - = —
D ~ S ¢ s Yo} — ~ ~
=3 i
6.6 Suspension of Dividends é 3
The SBP through its Circular Letter No. BPRD/BA & CPD/006315-2/20 dated April 22, 2020 has advised that banks which had 81 5 N SO EE e () @
declared dividend for the quarter ended March 31, 2020 should suspend cash dividend distribution for the next two quarters. 8 = S R I ! '0\’. o ,0\’. m hot ; (Lf; g ' S.
3| 82 S g |- 8718 |8
: = 5 € < - = |~ <
Unaudited Audited 3| &3 = = A
December 31, <o
June 30, 2020 2019
g 232 IB3gRgIB [22882 8|8
7. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURYBANKS - Rupees in '000-----—- - ‘é E § S |29 E § g -2 § E E p
82 4 |5381B 1239818 [& I3s 8|3
In hand oE S o <o N Qoo © S oy ¥ |y
Local currency 24,045,179 20,833,520 E < © ~ ~
Foreign currencies 4,727,614 2,802,190 ° ]
28,772,793 23,635,710 3 s 823 [RS8 |8 352 8|8
With State Bank of Pakistan in > & LIS § S8 § 8 [&8 8 § g 2|8
Local currency current accounts 75,465,668 62,180,493 > © <~ |[fedTe (S S F R )
Foreign currency current accounts 1,185,958 599,384 8 & & O
Foreign currency deposit accounts 11,090,785 14,320,863 —
87,742,411 77,100,740 - S8 22835 [ ... . |F
n = = SRER LR R U e B
With other central banks in § 23 S g % NN g %
Foreign currency current accounts 10,883,558 16,220,148 g % a o o o
S = ™ ™ (3]
With National Bank of Pakistan in 2
Local currency current accounts 26,988,827 25,666,525 i 5 § E N g © © E § g
QS c T |55 =5 .
Prize bonds 70,687 334,235 2l c8 s o DS eE e s
S| 82 =g 8|0 sy¥e |8
154,458,276 142,957,358 2| 5 € - - = |~ =
Sl £ = = =
8. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
k7] 0 olw O N N [~ <+ o — @l o o
In Pakistan _3 SRE 886 bld [b+383|8 8|8 "
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10.2.2 Particulars of provision against debt securities
Category of classification Unaudited June 30, 2020 Audited December 31, 2019 @ e gy AERNE =) Y3/ NI oS seseinEl =
— — IS = © x[Q ~ Q| 5| © IS < =< 0o <o S5 © ©—N 5
NPI Provision NPI Provision R &S == N <] o N = b - o O © [ N N 1 1
Domestic Rupees in '000-------- 3 325 |3Y35 Bs | RE® 21 e I35 T3 2
55 SRz (299 38 | 83|z ]| 5 53 Cl1PlE o
Doubtful - - 145,656 72,828 E:) © © e S g v w < e =
Loss 606,734 606,734 461,078 461,078 § § ‘z 5 §
606,734 606,734 606,734 533,906 gl o o g g 8
— —— o} 5] ‘5
10.2.3 In addition to the above, overseas branches hold a general provision of Rs 27.043 million (December 31, 2019: Rs S § § § § § g g § S D% § @ § a 2 § % g g; % ) % b} 23 § § £
5.780 million) in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9. B o ool |odlolel B P 2|E ., S = o O[5 Sww ooyl 8
<5 |SERE (BBISIE £5 8BS  cjsz| EREGE SEZSER s
10.3  The market value of securities classified as held-to-maturity as at June 30, 2020 amounted to Rs. 25,556.883 million £ o S8-IR |29 58 £ s 'BEEl S < Lif 3g “&l= N -
(December 31, 2019: Rs. 34,042.566 million). 3 3 e °
° 3 £
2 2 =
10.4 Investment of the Group in Adamjee Insurance Company Limited has been accounted for under the equity method of o NE S s 15l % °g’. S9L s 398 3lgls Z-’-
accounting in accordance with the treatment specified in International Accounting Standard 28, (IAS 28) 'Accounting & SEsle Iw e ] A s v 29N sl s
for Investments in Associates'. The market value of the investment in Adamjee Insurance Company Limited as at June § § =3 E|e 3 | 3% 2 ol 8 SRR = 5|3|% 4
30, 2020 amounted to Rs. 2,317.700 million (2019: Rs. 2,946.300 million). ol 3 2 & 2 |z |E” £ 8|38 - 88 “|°ls S
5 8 2 sl ™ ©
Investment in Adamjee Insurance Company Limited under equity method - holding 20.00% (2019: 20.00%) g § 2 E % 3
‘D o c =
Unaudited Audited E g— o = o o || < E— i oo —|o ~ =~ © g
June 30,2020 December31, g8 28323 |8.88 5 L|E SSS52 - 833RQIY o
, [ O N~ 0| (3] 0| o < gg - O © Wvlmn ~ < © o | £
2019 5o SREE |8 g 2 glegl 88%2R S ¢
z > 2 2 93 s c N 6g) NL ey = [N
---------- Rupees in '000-------- 80 2 5 I =€ 5 ° 838 = o 5lg o |0 = L‘LE
S < <3 S -
= =1 o
Opening balance 4,211,707 3,959,039 3 = 9
2 leegle [ ggls 2 ®
Share of profit for the period / year before tax 436,717 326,755 & I i i s S 2
Dividend from associate (105,000) (175,000) s o 8 %8 SR % @ b =
Share of tax (95,334) (109,675) 33 5323 2 5 =2 = £
236,383 42,080 o & 5 o
Share of other comprehensive income (355,796) 210,588 E a £ §
Closing balance 4,092,294 4,211,707 £ 0 o oo 3] 5] © S é
-.8 SR IR R R = IS
Share of other comprehensive income 28 2338 ISR RS © 5]
S s S 5 ©f Y| o 3 =
Share of unrealized surplus on assets -net of tax (362,985) 167,219 82 38| SRS g £
Share of exchange translation reserve of associate 7,189 43,369 > _§, =3 ®
(355,796) 210,588 g =
10.5 Investment of the Group in Euronet Pakistan Private Limited has been accounted for under the equity method of % ?%
accounting in accordance with the treatment specified in International Accounting Standard 28, (IAS 28) 'Accounting g oo
for Investments in Associates'. 2 - é %
E
Investment in Euronet Pakistan Private Limited under equity method - holding 30% (2019: 30.00%) g n o § %%
. 2 o « 2 E=i
Unaudited BT ¢ S S s 2 Ea
June 30, 2020 : S 2 2 5 = = 3 22
2019 c @ o . o = T S =
---------- Rupees in '000-------- £83 § g & £ g g 55
o @ > 2 7 @ £ [Sike]
238 g 5 .2 g =& a = o o 2
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Share of tax (2,776) (9,414) 5525 & 2 £og 2 = ELS328 258 8258 £ 29
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11.3  Particulars of provision against advances
Unaudited June 30, 2020 Audited December 31, 2019
Specific General Total Specific General Total
Ru pees in '000----===-ssmsmmmmmmmemeeeneeaeen

Opening balance 41,937,761 1,461,011 43,398,772 41,944,267 1,292,113 43,236,380

Exchange adjustments 229,995 25,167 255,162 302,297 23,426 325,723

Charge for the period / year 763,606 4,222,152 4,985,758 3,359,542 174,710 3,534,252

Reversals (948,706) (78,020) (1,026,726) (3,649,841) (29,238) (3,679,079)

(185,100) 4,144,132 3,959,032 (290,299) 145,472 (144,827)

Amounts written off (119,288) - (119,288) (18,504) - (18,504)

Closing balance 41,863,368 5,630,310 47,493,678 41,937,761 1,461,011 43,398,772

11.3.1 State Bank of Pakistan vide BSD Circular No. 2 dated January 27, 2009, BSD Circular No. 10 dated October 20, 2009, BSD Circular No. 02 of 2010
dated June 03, 2010 and BSD Circular No.1 of 2011 dated October 21, 2011 has allowed benefit of forced sale value (FSV) of Plant & Machinery
under charge, pledged stock and mortgaged residential, commercial & industrial properties (land and building only) held as collateral against NPLs
for five years from the date of classification. The Bank (holding company) has not taken the FSV benefit in calculation of specific provision. However,
one of the subsidiary of the Bank has availed benefit of forced sale values amounting to Rs.442.062 million (December 31, 2019: Rs.178.374
million) in determining the provisioning against non-performing Islamic financing and related assets as at June 30, 2020. The additional benefit on
the Bank's statement of profit and loss arising from availing the FSV benefit - net of tax amounts to Rs 287.340 million as at June 30, 2020
(December 31, 2019: Rs 115.943 million). However, the additional impact on profitability arising from availing the benefit of forced sales value is not
available for payment of cash or stock dividends to shareholders.

11.3.2 General provision against consumer loans represents provision maintained against fully secured performing portfolio and unsecured performing
portfolio as required by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP. General provision against Small Enterprise Finance represents provision
maintained at an amount equal to 1% of unsecured performing portfolio as required by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP. General
provisions pertaining to overseas advances are made in accordance with the requirements of the regulatory authorities of the respective countries
in which the overseas branches operate.

11.3.3 |n addition, the Group has also maintained a general provision of Rs 4,650 million (December 31, 2019: Rs 527 million) against financing made on
prudent basis, in view of prevailing economic conditions. This general provision is in addition to the requirements of Prudential Regulations as
explainedinnote 6.1.

Unaudited Audited
Note June 30, 2020 December 31,
2019
12. FIXED ASSETS ——————-Rupees in '000------

Capital work-in-progress 121 1,276,595 1,068,429

Property and equipment 52,037,660 52,466,540
Right-of-use assets 9,976,652 10,666,838

63,290,907 64,201,807

12.1 Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 822,241 476,799
Equipment 9,574 90,946
Advances to suppliers 404,008 491,968
Others 40,772 8,716

1,276,595 1,068,429
Unaudited half Unaudited half
Year ended June Year ended June

12.2 Additions to fixed assets 30, 2020 30, 2019
The following additions have been made to fixed assets during the period: -------—---Rupees in '000--------
Capital work-in-progress 314,899 336,278
Property and equipment
Freehold land 25,327 708,245
Building on freehold land 34,833 1,008,259
Electrical office and computer equipment 315,941 688,953
Furniture and fixture 103,916 114,142
Leasehold Improvements 111,765 137,480
Vehicles 50,229 76,484
Leasehold land 6,999 -

649,010 2,733,563
Total 963,909 3,069,841
12.3 Disposal of fixed assets

The net book value of fixed assets disposed off during the period is as follows:

Freehold land - 21,000
Vehicles 6,971 28,910
Furniture and fixture 614 573
Electrical office and computer equipment 3,390 849
Leasehold Improvements 1,300 283
Total 12,275 51,615

MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies -v-
Notes To The Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) ——
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
) Audited
Note Jug2a3uodltzeg20 December 31,
' 2019
13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS ] Rupees in '000--------
Capital work-in-progress 330,894 472,336
Goodwill 82,127 82,127
Management rights 192,000 192,000
Computer software 1,242,504 1,232,512
1,847,525 1,978,975
Unaudited half Unaudited half
Year ended June Year ended June
131 Additions to intangible assets 30, 2020 30, 2019
The following additions have been made to intangible assets during the period: 7 Rupees in '000-——-
Capital work-in-progress 14,530 -
Directly purchased 72,242 257,037
86,772 257,037
. Audited
Unaudited December 31,

June 30, 2020 2019

14. OTHER ASSETS

Income/ mark-up accrued in local currency 27,300,723 24,533,964
Income/ mark-up accrued in foreign currencies 668,412 564,667
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 2,380,470 3,940,446
Compensation for delayed income tax refunds 133,809 133,809
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 3,235,832 3,251,508
Branch adjustment account 67,164 77,281
Mark to market gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 2,997,691 3,848,188
Unrealized gain on derivative financial instruments 1,186,368 1,236,517
Acceptances 20 19,933,620 20,346,205
Receivable from the pension fund 1,239,559 3,605,121
Others 8,293,271 10,118,430
67,436,919 71,656,136
Less: Provision held against other assets 14.1 2,644,288 2,604,137
Other Assets (net of provision) 64,792,631 69,051,999
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims 677,660 677,660
Other Assets - total 65,470,291 69,729,659

141 Provision held against other assets

Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 90,938 90,938

Claims against fraud and forgeries 499,238 -
Others 2,054,112 2,513,199
2,644,288 2,604,137

14.1.1 Movement in provision held against other assets

Opening balance 2,604,137 2,550,585
Charge for the period / year 1,311 12,587
Reversals (19,188) (36,023)
(17,877) (23,436)
Amounts written off (3,922) (3,638)
Exchange and other adjustments 61,950 80,626
Closing balance 2,644,288 2,604,137

15. CONTINGENT ASSETS
There were no contingent assets of the Group as at June 30, 2020 (2019: NIL).
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16. BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan
Outside Pakistan

17. BORROWINGS

Secured

Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan

Under export refinance scheme

Under long term financing facility

Under renewable energy performance platform

Under payment of Wages & Salaries

Repurchase agreement borrowings

Total secured

Unsecured

Borrowings from other financial institution

Call borrowings

Overdrawn nostro accounts

Musharaka arrangements

Others
Total unsecured

18. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers
Current deposits
Savings deposits
Term deposits
Others

Financial Institutions
Current deposits
Savings deposits
Term deposits

Others

Unaudited
June 30, 2020

e

—
Il
MCB

Bank for Life

Audited
December 31,
2019

---—-----Rupees in '000--------

12,538,610 12,759,834
74,287 35,491
12,612,897 12,795,325
38,109,698 36,513,083
20,360,284 18,138,200
77,834 85,062

1,984,481 -
Under financing facility for storage of agricultural produce 215,346 188,809
60,747,643 54,925,154
52,657,800 28,099,229
113,405,443 83,024,383
2,100,791 889,161
265,305 5,964,830
632,110 1,342,603
506,721 1,476,705
162,286 162,286
3,667,213 9,835,585
117,072,656 92,859,968

Unaudited June 30, 2020 Audited December 31, 2019
e R
Rupees in'000

426,606,566 50,534,795 477,141,361 357,303,848 53,340,189 410,644,037
678,903,046 51,704,589 730,607,635 583,751,817 47,420,170 631,171,987
72,609,973 13,733,424 86,343,397 100,346,882 15,590,901 115,937,783
35,021,420 3,340,067 38,361,487 26,456,179 2,854,010 29,310,189
1,213,141,005 119,312,875 1,332,453,880  1,067,858,726 119,205,270 1,187,063,996
12,187,314 1,658,272 13,845,586 9,520,075 2,094,703 11,614,778
14,240,717 43,285 14,284,002 14,992,263 27,986 15,020,249
4,809,468 5,794,997 10,604,465 4,959,099 7,741,444 12,700,543
- 160,075 160,075 - 193,459 193,459
31,237,499 7,656,629 38,894,128 29,471,437 10,057,592 39,529,029
1,244,378,504 126,969,504 1,371,348,008  1,097,330,163 129,262,862 1,226,593,025

MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies

Notes To The Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited)

For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020

Note
19. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Taxable Temporary Differences on

- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

- Surplus on revaluation of Non-banking assets
- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Receivable from pension fund

- Business combination

- Investments in associated undertaking

- Surplus/deficit on revaluation of investments

Deductible Temporary Differences on
- Tax losses carried forward

- Provision against advances

- Others

20. OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up/ return/ interest payable in local currency
Mark-up/ return/ interest payable in foreign currencies
Unearned commission and income on bills discounted
Accrued expenses

Provision for taxation (provisions less payments)

Workers' welfare fund 20.1
Acceptances 14
Unclaimed / dividends payable

Mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts
Unrealised loss on derivative financial instruments

Staff welfare fund

Provision for employees' compensated absences
Provision for post retirement medical benefits

Provision for employees' contributory benevolent scheme
Retention money

Insurance payable against consumer assets

Unclaimed balances

Duties and taxes payable

Charity fund balance

Provision against off-balance sheet obligations

Security deposits against lease

Branch adjustment account

Lease liability against right of use assets

Others

20.1 Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016 has held that the amendments made in the law introduced by the

’

Y

MCB

I

Bank for Life

. Audited
Juggasuodltzegzo December 31,
’ 2019
---------- Rupees in '000--------
1,366,020 1,390,542
237,181 237,181
1,939,965 1,961,113
433,846 1,261,793
705,218 705,218
1,205,545 1,247,340
10,646,815 2,329,519
16,534,590 9,132,706
(840,983) (949,800)
(3,317,786) (1,726,151)
(293,905) (242,532)
(4,452,674) (2,918,483)
12,081,916 6,214,223
3,865,836 23,511,019
255,668 664,130
274,779 252,842
5,044,366 6,310,392
9,532,780 6,045,948
8,318,793 7,873,706
19,933,620 20,346,205
1,714,295 1,605,123
2,382,336 4,638,011
1,182,033 1,232,806
3,755 5,727
1,041,980 939,495
2,094,346 1,921,348
250,398 221,193
20,657 20,657
562,087 655,146
892,242 993,105
2,034,110 775,694
35,410 54,782
46,653 46,581
1,398,888 1,497,296
101,037 -

11,218,815 11,436,633
8,492,673 11,357,674
80,697,557 102,405,513

Federa IGovernment for the levy of Workers Welfare Fund were not lawful. The Federal Board of Revenue has filed review petitions

against this order which are currently pending.

Legal advice obtained on the matter indicates that consequent to filing of these review petitions the judgment may not currently be

treated as conclusive. Accordingly, the Bank maintained its provision in respect of WWF.

Note
21. RESERVES
Share premium
Non- distributable capital reserve - gain on bargain purchase option 211
Exchange translation reserve
Statutory reserve 21.2

General reserve

. Audited
Jugre]asu(;jltzegzo December 31,
’ 2019

---------- Rupees in '000--------
23,973,024 23,973,024
908,317 908,317
3,569,662 2,730,354
33,014,106 31,683,134
18,600,000 18,600,000
80,065,109 77,894,829
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22.

23.

e

—
Il
MCB

Bank for Life

21.1 Under IFRS-3 a bargain purchase represents an economic gain which should be immediately recognized by the acquirer as income. However,
the amount of bargain purchase gain was not been taken to the profit and loss account as the SBP, through its letter BPRD(R&PD)/2017/14330
dated June 13, 2017 recommended that the amount of gain may be routed directly into equity as a Non-distributable Capital Reserve (NCR).
The NCR may become available for distribution through a stock dividend only with prior approval of the SBP. The Group, before distribution of
the gain as a stock dividend, may adjust any subsequent provisions/deficit, assessed by the Group or recommended by the Banking Inspection
Department of SBP, in the acquired assets and liabilities of NIB Bank Limited against the NCR.

21.2 Statutory reserve represents amount set aside as per the requirements of section 21 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of

- Available for sale securities

- Fixed Assets

- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
- Associated undertaking

Deferred tax on surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of:

- Available for sale securities

- Fixed Assets

- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
- Associated undertaking

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

-Guarantees
-Commitments
-Other contingent liabilities

23.1 Guarantees:

Financial guarantees
Performance guarantees
Other guarantees

23.2 Commitments:
Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions
- letters of credit

Commitments in respect of:

- forward foreign exchange contracts

- forward government securities transactions
- derivatives

- commitments to extent credit

Commitments for acquisition of:
- operating fixed assets
- intangible assets

23.2.1 Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts

Purchase
Sale

Note

10.1

231
23.2
23.3

23.2.1
23.2.2
23.2.3

Unaudited
June 30, 2020

Audited
December 31,
2019

30,419,471 6,655,770
20,961,195 21,031,256
677,660 677,660
248,264 611,247
52,306,590 28,975,933
10,646,815 2,329,519
1,366,020 1,390,542
237,181 237,181
141,957 266,485
12,391,973 4,223,727
39,914,617 24,752,206
189,045,775 | | 180,002,174
347,485,871 || 657,101,777
31,233,154 28,352,091
567,764,800 865,456,042
151,387,602 | | 141,181,839
33,100,782 33,833,099
4,557,391 4,987,236
189,045,775 180,002,174
137,707,458 | | 153,036,304
183,736,687 || 404,891,089
17,218,440 87,696,638
7,415,438 10,244,806
158,202 307,755
1,176,975 859,953
72,671 65,232
347,485,871 _ 657,101,777
111,003,579 | [ 216,647,656
72,733,108 | | 188,243,433
183,736,687 __ 404,891,089

MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies
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Notes To The Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) ——
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
. Audited
Note JulrJ\Zaslé)dltzegzo December 31,
’ 2019
23.2.2 Commitments in respect of forward government securities transactions | Rupees in '000--------
Purchase 16,956,208 82,284,304
Sale 262,232 5,412,334
17,218,440 87,696,638
23.2.3 Commitments in respect of derivatives
FX options (notional)
Purchase 63,433 431,449
Sale 63,433 431,449
) 126,866 862,898
Cross Currency Swaps (notional)
Purchase 3,408,368 4,428,663
Sale 3,563,704 4,636,745
) 6,972,072 9,065,408
Interest Rate Swaps (notional)
Purchase 316,500 316,500
7,415,438 10,244,806
23.2.4 The Group makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but these being revocable
commitments do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn.
23.3 Other contingent liabilities
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts 23.3.1 31,233,154 28,352,091
23.3.1 These represent certain claims by third parties against the Group, which are being contested in the Courts of law. The
management is of the view that these relate to the normal course of business and the possibility of an outflow of economic
resources is remote.
23.4 Taxation

For assessment year 1988-89 through tax year 2018, the tax department disputed Bank's treatment on certain issues,
where the Bank's appeals are pending at various appellate forums, entailing an additional tax liability of Rs. 1,487 million
(2019: Rs. 1,487 million). Such issues inter alia principally include disallowance of expenses for non deduction of
withholding tax and non availability of underlying records, provision for non performing loans, attribution of expenses to
heads of income other than income from business and disallowance of credit for taxes paid in advance / deducted at
source.

The Bank has filed appeals which are pending at various appellate forums. In addition, certain decisions made in favour of
the Bank are being contested by the department at higher forums. No provision has been made in these
condensed interim financial statements regarding the aforesaid additional tax demand and already issued favourable
decisions where the department is in appeal, as the management is of the view that the issues will be decided in the Bank's
favour as and when these are taken up by the Appellate Authorities.

24. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Unaudited June 30, 2020

Cross Currency Swaps Interest Rate Swaps FX Options
Notional Mark to market Notional Mark to market Notional Mark to market
Principal gain / loss Principal gain / loss Principal gain / loss
Rupeesin '000
Total
Hedging 3,408,368 1,180,562 316,500 3,040 63,433 2,766
Market Making 3,563,704 (1,179,267) - - 63,433 (2,766)
Audited December 31, 2019
Rupeesin '000
Total
Hedging 4,428,663 1,218,634 316,500 11,510 431,449 2,683
Market Making 4,636,745 (1,226,433) - - 431,449 (2,683)

55




MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies ﬁ

MCEB
Notes To The Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) ——
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life

Unaudited half Unaudited half
Year ended June Year ended June

30, 2020 30, 2019
Note
—————————— Rupees in '000--------
25. MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EARNED
Loans and advances 29,887,052 30,007,273
Investments 49,453,561 29,503,271
Lendings to financial institutions 797,002 3,627,611
Balances with banks 270,974 280,123
80,408,589 63,418,278
26. MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EXPENSED
Deposits 36,456,056 29,182,289
Borrowings 3,694,589 2,883,430
Subordinated debt _ 213,604
Cost of foreign currency swaps against
foreign currency deposits / borrowings 1,200,521 1,092,168
Unwinding cost of liability against right-of-use assets 804,608 467,237
42,155,774 33,838,728
27. FEE & COMMISSION INCOME
Branch banking customer fees 946,071 949,785
Consumer finance related fees 191,363 164,142
Card related fees (debit and credit cards) 1,556,444 1,446,732
Credit related fees 14,765 108,557
Investment banking fee 71,482 85,381
Commission on trade 665,174 770,798
Commission on guarantees 317,793 334,409
Commission on cash management 286,992 334,914
Commission on remittances including home remittances 519,685 569,231
Commission income - Bancassurance 498,653 683,875
Rent on lockers 106,977 124,914
Commission on utility bills 36,734 49,115
Commission on investments services 360,833 384,019
Other Commission 85,150 63,190
5,658,116 6,069,062
28. GAIN ON SECURITIES, NET
Realised 28.1 (120,340) (95,036)
Unrealised - held for trading 10.1 62,676 (82,646)
(57,664) (177,682)
28.1 Realised gain / (loss) on:
Federal Government Securities 183,380 7,948
Shares (315,800) (102,984)
Others 12,080 -
(120,340) (95,036)
29. OTHER INCOME
Rent on property 12,628 20,378
Gain on conversion of ljarah agreements 52,549 -
Gain on sale of fixed assets-net 18,982 36,625
84,159 57,003

’
MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies -v-
Notes To The Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) —
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life

Unaudited half Unaudited half
Year ended June Year ended June
30, 2020 30, 2019

30. OPERATING EXPENSES

Total compensation expense 9,151,578 8,505,312
Property expense
Rent and taxes 116,291 264,809
Insurance 29,563 29,759
Utilities cost 552,665 548,811
Fuel expense generators 156,053 264,488
Security (including guards) 717,700 861,865
Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges) 364,031 513,615
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 820,537 791,166
Depreciation 403,281 306,556
3,160,121 3,581,069

Information technology expenses

Software maintenance 657,788 690,337
Hardware maintenance 186,999 221,857
Depreciation 336,149 282,055
Amortisation 227,611 188,591
Network charges 361,367 345,754
Insurance 3,070 2,971
1,772,984 1,731,565
Other operating expenses
Directors' fees and allowances 21,956 23,347
Remuneration to shariah board members 5,080 4,022
Legal and professional charges 167,249 201,410
Outsourced services costs 437,240 419,309
Travelling and conveyance 146,697 197,142
NIFT clearing charges 95,164 82,188
Depreciation 450,718 493,260
Depreciation on non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 15,675 24,124
Training and development 15,898 28,713
Postage and courier charges 166,202 166,414
Communication 167,607 179,929
Stationery and printing 296,161 384,332
Marketing, advertisement & publicity 340,931 438,341
Donations 112,596 -
Auditors' remuneration 21,730 20,908
Cash transportation charges 338,437 367,222
Repair and maintenance 165,693 182,903
Subscription 21,603 4,667
Entertainment 100,963 133,328
Remittance charges 95,524 103,543
Brokerage expenses 23,419 21,160
Card related expenses 419,694 444,920
CNIC verification charges 53,129 112,886
Insurance 788,743 748,953
Others 130,942 208,490
4,599,051 4,991,511
18,683,734 18,809,457
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Unaudited half Unaudited half 35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Note Year ended June Year ended June The fair value of traded investments is based on quoted market prices, except for tradable securities classified by the Group as 'held to
30, 2020 30,2019 maturity'. Quoted securities classified as held to maturity are carried at amortised cost. Fair value of unquoted equity investments other
---------- Rupees in '000-------- than investments in associates is determined on the basis of break up value of these investments as per the latest available financial
31. OTHER CHARGES statements.
Penalties of State Bank of Pakistan 183,601 15,277 Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient
VAT & National Building tax & Crop Insurance Levy 56.579 91.603 reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar
240,180 106,880 instruments.
In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are not significantly different from their
32. PROVISIONS / (REVERSALS) & WRITE OFFS - NET carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short-term in nature or re-priced over short term.
Reversal against balance with Banks (1,658) (506) 351 Fair value of financial assets
Provision for diminution in value of investments 10.2.1 200,967 1,707,792 The G falr val ina the following falr value hi hy that reflects the signif fthe Input di Kina th
Provision / (reversal) against loans and advances 113 3,959,032 (690,695) meeasurrc:rlrr])enr:tese.lsures air values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
Reversal against other assets 1411 (17,877) (29,144) ’
Recovery of written off / charged off bad debts (64,442) (79,948) Level 1:  Fairvalue measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
4,076,022 907,499

Level 2:  Fajr value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

33. TAXATION ) o o )
Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable

Current 10,719,826 7,000,058 inputs).
Prior years (7,658) 450,124
Deferred (1,437,013) 14.386 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair valuation of financial instruments within level 2
Share of tax of associates 98,110 89,160 Item Valuation approach and input used
9,373,265 7,553,728 Federal Government The fair values of Federal Government securities are determined using the PKRV rates.
securities
34. BASICANDDILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE Rupees in '000-------- Term Finance and Bonds | |nvestments in debt securities (comprising term finance certificates, bonds and any other security issued
by a company or a body corporate for the purpose of raising funds in the form of redeemable capital) are
Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Bank 13,425,378 10,420,807 valued on the basis of the rates announced by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in
accordance with the methodology prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
Number:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Ul E LS 1,185,060,006 Foreign exchange The valuation has been determined by interpolating the mid rates announced by the State Bank of
__________ RUPEES-——rrr contracts Pakistan.
Basic and diluted earnings per share 11.33 8.79 Derivatives The fair values of derivatives which are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation

techniques. The valuation techniques take into account the relevant underlying parameters including
foreign currency involved, interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, contracts duration etc.

Operating fixed assets Land and buildings are revalued every three years using professional valuers on the panel of Pakistan
(land and building) & NBA | Banker's Association. The valuation is based on their assessment of market value of the properties.

The Group policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer occurred. There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the period.

(a) Financial instruments in level 1

Financial instruments included in level 1 comprise of investments in listed ordinary shares and units of mutual funds.

(b) Financial instruments in level 2

Financial instruments included in level 2 comprise of Sukuk Bonds, Pakistan Investment Bonds, Market Treasury Bills, Term Finance
certificates, FX options, Cross Currency Swaps, Interest Rate Swaps and Forward Exchange Contracts.

(c) Financial instruments in level 3
Currently, no financial instruments are classified in level 3.
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The table below analyses the financial and non-financial assets carried at fair values, by valuation methods. For financial assets, the Group o glg = s o s 23 sgzale g olg slel] g
essentially carries its investments in debt and equity securities at fair values. Valuation of investments is carried out as per guidelines specified by = P D= S 22 28 '2S525Ie g2 e IR H
the SBP. In case of non-financial assets, the Group has adopted revaluation model (as per IAS 16) in respect of land and building. kS & SR 8 b [ g8 =Z8d88 5 & el S N I
Unaudited June 30, 2020 [ R A A B BOCRk =8 SlEFE]S®
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total = = = = =
On balance sheet financial instruments Rupeesin '000 2 S S 8 3 3
=4 {23 D D D D
Financial assets - measured at fair value EE 3 3 s 8 8
Investments E S S 8 8 8
Federal Government Securities 887,533,058 - 887,533,058 - 887,533,058 L | - - - - -
Shares 16,772,350 16,772,350 = = 16,772,350 © slg = PN -] g 2888 U €« 8 38 2lg glg S
Non-Government Debt Securities 2,985,012 2,985,012 - 2,985,012 ] S gly 2 g els Srgusssls veo o dlg gl
Foreign Securities 4,489,450 - 4,489,450 - 4,489,450 2 s = § > s < § 2 ; Sorogle =2 o9 S = (=] S
@ = ] el = 5§ & 2ls| 8
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value o= = <= ~ 3
Investments (HTM, AFS, unlisted ordinary ool « o = |e o =w o=ogle o 9 ols als] o
; g8&lB 8 . |8 %8 Sxe . 838 288 . 8z 2|R]|8
Cash and balances with treasury banks 154,458,276 - - - - B A <~ o (o L= 519 I3 591 &
~ o~ ~ |
Balances with other banks 16,558,773 - - - -
Lendings to financial institutions 3,185,565 - - - - | S ol <= - o © 3 sz © ~ |o ©
Advances 530,556,220 - - - - e DO - §. 25 &l R A
Other assets 57,826,735 - - - - g2 & R IR B LB o I 1N 2818 R
Non - Financial Assets measured at fair value % £ %
Operating fixed assets (land and buildings) 43,377,704 = 43,377,704 = 43,377,704 2= S a a — o la] 3 3= sacsly =2a 9l o
Non-banking assets 3,822,554 - 3,822,554 - 3,822,554 % £l = § s = T8N g8 RIS = 83 3 (2 21 <
sl 8le 2 BF & [RT|8| 282 €EE2E 882812 [E]|E%
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - measured at fair value f‘j g ‘;& o S o 5;& I -8 dI 8 e 22 2] @
Forward purchase of foreign exchange 111,003,579 - 2,933,545 - 2,933,545 g 2| g
Forward sale of foreign exchange 72,733,108 - 2,318,190 - 2,318,190 Zl| 5 2598l 8 2zl Slzgg wegsgels =23 sls 8l g
R Sadgle 8 |eald] 8 Sassle IS5 Fle | S
Derivati h 3,788,301 1,186,368 1,186,368 5|52 BSBE B B3| 585 E£RESS 88328 [5|E
erivatives purchase ,788, - ,100, - , 100, £ 5 = NG AN wdAls ® 9o 6 oo =
Derivatives sale 3,627,137 - 1,182,033 - 1,182,033 £ S & = ° T = D I
Audited December 31, 2019 e 5 olo o o o | o - ole o o o le ol o
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total = A sy © R ] =R ]I & S SR IR S
Rupeesin '000 2 SEal3 8 g Z |8 §& =g & 2 8|8 gl €
On balance sheet financial instruments = IE| ¥ R § = § g § . § g §
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments R zgzlz 2 . kelk| |ge. zzslg esszl [B]z
Federal Government Securities 691,477,045 - 691,477,045 - 691,477,045 T2 gz 8 § 2 z 9|g 28 2z § g€ 2Rg¢2 g| §
Shares 17,075,189 17,075,189 - - 17,075,189 §f§ =EEFF ~ <= ec-dlzg ~ 8893 3| 5
Non-Government Debt Securities 2,424,102 2,424,102 - 2,424,102
Foreign Securities 3,663,065 - 3,663,065 - 3,663,065 g I o5 <|lo ~ — o o - o < oo > o © |o -
(=) — - 0 D0 - ~ =t D ": 0w~ oo ~ =3 o D D
F:n:‘a_ncialI assets - disclosed but not measured s § g § ;r é § E § § E g % % 5 % § § § § §
at fair value 8 ||gs = & . o S|g © 5 oalg |9
Investments (HTM, AFS, unlisted ordinary » ; °
shares, and associates) 42,802,189 - - - - § 2 M= 5w ol o < |o 4 o6 ©oole v o o o o | «
Cash and balances with treasury banks 142,957,358 - - - - g S £ Sggl8 g g5 |2 32 .888|18 8% 5|8 |8]§
Balances with other banks 21,371,753 - - - - o 8 3 83383 = S (1 2 2 HEEE &2 58 |8
) A 2 5 || s EETE 2 |2 | g g8 & S g5 =2 (o) =
Lendings to financial institutions 6,060,869 - - - - 2 B 3 g © g 8 Y= S S =
Advances 548,472,860 - - - - % o
Other assets 58,219,618 - - - - s 3 N
k1l @»n £
Non - Financial Assets measured at fair value = g’_ E g s w £ £
Operating fixed assets (land and buildings) 44,882,204 - 44,882,204 - 44,882,204 8 I = % g g g o E
Non-banking assets 3,838,230 - 3,838,230 - 3,838,230 ! § B g 52 g = - £ g E
o = = 3= é 2 Z e = £ E g8 5 =
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - measured 2 % % < g 2 e g E § 3 E g g 8 8 f
Forward purchase of foreign exchange 216,647,656 - 4,142,227 - 4,142,227 & t = 8 3 “é_;_ 5 s ﬂé, § 2 8 58 E %’ 2. % 3 ‘% %’ = ‘g 2
Forward sale of foreign exchange 188,243,433 - 3,352,404 - 3,352,404 5 f 2EgES e 8 3 § 2 g2 E22e 23 3322 % z = g
vat ) 5 38 £ 23258 2582 58323233 5F8 22338588 ¢F 3
Derivatives purchase 5,176,612 - 1,232,827 - 1,232,827 - - - -
Derivatives sale 5,068,194 - 1,229,116 - 1,229,116 © %
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MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies -v- MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies -v-
Notes To The Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) —— Notes To The Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) ——
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
Unaudited Audited 39 ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS
June 30. 2020 December 31 The Group through a wholly owned subsidiary (MCB Islamic Bank Limited ) is operating 179 branches in Pakistan
' 2019 ' (December 31, 2019: 185 branches). The statement of financial position of the Group's Islamic Banking Business as at
. June 30, 2020 is as follows:
38 CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS ~ ---------- Rupees in '000------- _ Audited
J gzasuodltzegzo December 31,
38.1 Capital Adequacy Note u ’ 2019
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR): L Rupees in '000------
Paid-up capital (net of losses) 11,850,600 11,850,600 ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 10,290,578 10,252,547
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR): Balances with other banks 1,833,108 8,822,985
Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 134,341,034 132,504,188 Due from financial institutions 39.1 1,128,790 5,851,664
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital - -
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 134,341,034 132,504,188 Investments - net 392 24,619,401 || 16,309,800
Eligible Tier 2 Capital 48,674,110 28,503,091 Islamic financing and related assets - net 39.3 69,407,484 51,309,967
Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 183,015,144 161,007,279 Fixed assets 5,577,869 5,779,772
i i Intangible assets 671,148 719,723
Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):
Credit Risk 649 .202.264 662.366.497 Deferred tax assets - net 978,470 921,017
Market Risk 165,818,564 113,394,030 Other assets - net 5,940,403 5,049,786
Operational Risk 126,966,330 126,966,330 Total Assets 120,447,251 105,017,261
Total 941,987,158 902,726,857
LIABILITIES
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio 14.26% 14.68% Bill
s payable 2,108,670 973,627
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 14.26% 14.68% pay
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.43% 17.84% Due to financial institutions 3,685,418 4,127,526
Deposits and other accounts 39.4 96,679,809 81,853,511
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - -
Sub-ordinated debts - -
382 Leverage Ratio (LR): Deferred tax liabilities - net
Eligible Tier-1 Capital 134,341,034 132,504,188 - -
Total Exposures 2,177,619,037  2,037,241,480 Other liabilities 7,560,059 7,595,796
Leverage Ratio 6.17% 6.50% 110,033,956 94,550,460
NET ASSETS 10,413,295 10,466,801
38.3 Liquidity Requirements REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 11,550,000 11,550,000
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):
Reserves 36,474 26,444
Total High Quality Liquid Assets 906,546,081 734,587,045 Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 317,837 422,326
Total Net Cash Outflow 405,912,874 379,626,249 Accumulated loss (1,491,016) (1,531,969)
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 223.34% 193.50% 10,413,295 10,466,801
Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 39.5
Total Available Stable Funding 1,184,581,144  1,045,877,006
Total Required Stable Funding 702,208,064 745,689,676
Net Stable Funding Ratio 168.69% 140.26%
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MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies -v- MCB Bank Limited & Subsidiary Companies -v-
Notes To The Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) — Notes To The Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited) —
For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life For The Half Year Ended June 30, 2020 Bank for Life
y ' . . . Unaudited Audited
The profit and loss account of the Group's Islamic banking branches for the half year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows: June 30, 2020 December 31, 2019
Quarter Half Year Quarter Half Year Cost/ Provision for Surplus / Carrying A C(:ft " Provision for Surplus / Carrying
ended June ended June ended June ended June ) Amortised cost| | diminution (Deficit) Value mortise diminution (Deficit) Value
39.2 Investments by type: cost
Note 30, 2020 30, 2020 30,2019 30, 2019 ) » R in 000
Ly Available-for-sale securities upees in
Rupees in '000 Federal Government securities 19,527,965 R 31,337)| [ 19,496,628 | [ 10,899,070 . (7.384)| [ 10,891,686
Shares 1,910,825 (1,069,172) 22,003 863,656 1,908,146 (1,059,172) 175,625 1,024,599
Profit / return earned 39.6 2,671,478 5,233,242 2,373,725 4,368,617 Non Government securities 1,081,500 - 16,790 1,098,290 1,119,000 - (1,312) 1,117,688
Profit / return expensed 39.7 1,436,452 3,041,319 1,398,120 2,634,746 22,520,290 (1,069,172) 7,456 21,458,574 13,926,216 (1,059,172) 166,929 13,033,973
Net spread earned 1,235,026 2,191,923 975,605 1,733,871 Held-to-maturity securities
Federal Government securities 2,700,827 - 2,700,827 2,700,827 - 2,700,827
OTHER INCOME Non Government securities | 460,000 | ’ | | - ‘ | 460,000 ‘ 575,000 | - ‘ | | ‘ 575,000
3,160,827 = o 3,160,827 3,275,827 - 3,275,827
Fee and commission income 66,738 137’243 75,544 141 ’152 Total Investments 25,681,117 (1,069,172) 7,456 24,619,401 17,202,043 (1,059,172) 166,929 16,309,800
Dividend income 10,033 17,799 32,582 44,007 ) Audited
Foreign exchange income (3,756) 105,543 38,574 59,089 Unaudited December 31,
Gain / (loss) on securities 9,226 9,590 (10,268) (43,077) o June 30,2020 2019
Other income 57,551 62,857 4,336 9,402 39.3 Islamic financing and related assets | Rupees in '000-------
Total other income 139,792 333,032 140,768 210,573 Murabaha 9,750,128 7,609,830
. Musawamah = 2,000
Total income 1,374,818 2,524,955 1,116,373 1,944,444 Istisna 3,896,032 2,603,493
OTHER EXPENSES Salam 57,069 111,287
ljarah 3,808,169 4,881,400
Operating expenses 1,177,191 2,268,619 1,098,427 2,219,887 Running Musharaka 32,117,582 16,669,096
Workers welfare fund 4,145 5,816 - - Diminishing Musharaka 18,726,003 18,176,482
Other charges - 62 (34) 43 Staff finance 1,191,077 1,293,082
Total other expenses 1,181,336 LR 1,098,393 2,219,930 Gross Islamic financing and related assets 69,546,060 51,346,670
Profit / (loss) before provisions 193,482 250,458 17,980 (275,486) Less: provision against Islamic financings
Provisions and write offs - net 79,812 114,236 112,172 149,669 - Specific (27,640) (3,340)
Extra ordinary / unusual items - - - - - General (110,936) (33,363)
(138,576) (36,703)
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 113,670 136,222 (94,192) (425,155) Islamic financing and related assets - net of provision 69,407,484 51,309,967
Taxation 69,721 86,073 (78,206) (148,787) 394 Deposits
Customers
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 43,949 50,149 (15,986) (276,368) Current deposits 27,406,302 22191828
i i 41,352,197 33,716,605
Unaudited  Audited Savings deposits
June 30, December Term deposits 18,825,443 15,122,076
2020 31,2019 Others 4,281,007 4,918,750
39.1 DUE FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Rupees in '000-—— 91,864,949 75,949,259
Financial Institutions
Secured Current deposits 107,042 100,334
Bai Muajjal receivable - with State Bank of Pakistan 828,790 3,371,664 Savings deposits 967,318 1,988,287
Term deposits 3,740,500 3,815,631
Unsecured 4,814,860 5,904,252
Musharaka arrangements 300,000 2,480,000 96679 809 81853511
1,128,790 5,851,664 39.5 Contingencies and Commitments
-Guarantees 7,466,351 6,467,046
-Commitments 12,976,812 11,498,973
-Other contingent liabilities 485,637 431,439
20,928,800 18,397,458
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39.6 Profit/Return Earned of Financing, Investments and Placement

Profit earned on:

Financing

Investments

Musharaka arrangements with financial institutions
Deposits with financial institutions

39.7 Profit on Deposits and other Dues Expensed
Deposits and other accounts
Musharaka arrangements with the State Bank of Pakistan under IERS
Musharaka arrangements with other financial institutions
Musharaka arrangements with other institution
Unwinding of liability against ROU asset

39.8 Islamic Banking Business Unappropriated Profit
Opening Balance
Movement during the period / year
Islamic Banking profit/(loss) before tax
Taxation
Other adjustments

Closing Balance

40 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Unaudited
June 30, 2020

Bank for Life

Unaudited

June 30, 2019

3,858,022 3,350,478
1,087,092 764,931
164,561 226,331
123,567 26,877
5,233,242 4,368,617
2,635,071 2,133,260
29,194 24,534
171,847 311,347
7,900 2,064
197,307 163,541
3,041,319 2,634,746
Audited
Unaudited December 31,

June 30, 2020

2019

(1,531,969)  (1,289,202)
136,222 (365,759)
(86,073) 122,147

(9,196) 845
40,953 (242,767)
(1,491,016)  (1,531,969)

In compliance with the SBP's instructions as disclosed in note 6.6 to the consolidated condensed interim financial statements, the Board of
Directors, in its meeting held on August 20,2020 has not declared any cash dividend in respect of the quarter ended June 30, 2020 (June

30, 2019: Rs 4 per share). Therefore, there is no non-adjusting event after the balance sheet date.

41  GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise stated.

42  DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Group in their

meeting held on August 20, 2020.
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